
 

 

 

 

 

 

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday, February 18, 2016 

7:00 PM 

 

 

Kathryn Kaminski, President ● Kay Danziger, Vice President ● Anna Gonzales, Secretary 
Dr. Tyson Harrell ● Melisa Roberts ● James Steenbergen ● Frank Torres 



LAMAR CISD BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

BRAZOS CROSSING ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

3911 AVENUE I, ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

7:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to order and establishment of a quorum  

2. Opening of meeting  

3. Student Reports  

A. Foster High School Robotics  

4. Recognitions/awards  

5. Introductions  

6. Audience to patrons  

7. Approval of minutes  

A. January 19, 2016 - Special Meeting (Workshop) 6 

B. January 21, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting 12 

8. Board members reports  

A. Meetings and events  

9. Superintendent reports  

A. Meetings and events  

B. Information for immediate attention  

10. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Goal:  Instructional  

1. Consider approval of additional Local State Compensatory Education 

criteria 

20 

B. Goal: Planning  

1. Consider approval of budget amendment requests 21 

2. Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 23 

3. Consider approval of collateral security agreement 27 

4. Consider approval of updates to accumulated leave buyback plans and 

related revisions to Board Policy 

33 

5. Consider approval of agreement to establish a safekeeping account with 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

123 

6. Consider approval of Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) with HON 

Company LLC 

129 

7. Consider approval of Board Policy - Second Reading 132 

a. Localized Policy Manual Update 102  

b. Localized Policy Manual Update 103  



8. Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:  

a. Diagnosticians' Week 133 

b. Texas Public Schools Week 135 

9. Consider approval of Lamar CISD Zoning Committee recommendations 

for Elementary #24 

137 

10. Consider approval of deductive change order #1 and final payment for 

Arredondo Elementary 

140 

11. Consider approval of deductive change order #1 and project closeout 

for the Traylor Stadium renovations 

143 

12. Consider approval of deductive change order #1 and final payment for the 

2015 summer miscellaneous projects 

146 

13. Consider approval of final payment for the security vestibules:  

a. Bowie Elementary School 149 

b. Briscoe Junior High School 151 

c. Foster High School 153 

d. George Junior High School 155 

e. Lamar Consolidated High School 157 

14. Consider approval of design development for Pink Elementary School 

repairs 

159 

15. Consider approval of hydrostatic plumbing test for Pink Elementary School 160 

16. Consider approval of design development for the new Elementary #25 163 

17. Consider approval of HVAC test and balance for the new Elementary #24 164 

18. Consider approval of Superintendent Priorities for 2016-2017 166 

19. Discussion of Board Operating Procedures 167 

C. Goal:  Technology  

1. Consider approval of additional security cameras and components 175 

11. INFORMATION ITEMS  

A. Goal:  Instructional  

1. Quarterly Academic Update 179 

2. 2015 Gaston Caperton Opportunity Honor Roll 180 

3. Freezing of new Intra-District/Inter-District transfer requests to Bowie, 

Hubenak, McNeill, Ray, Thomas, Travis, and Williams elementary schools 

181 

B. Goal: Planning  

1. Demographic Update 182 

2. Tax Collection Report 183 

3. Payments for Construction Projects 189 

4. Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 191 

5. Bond Update  

a. 2011 195 







 
 
 

Special Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Special Meeting Held 
 
On this the 19th day of January 2016, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Special Session (Workshop) in Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Ms. Kathryn 
Kaminski, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Members Present: 
 
Kathryn Kaminski  President 
Kay Danziger   Vice President 
Anna Gonzales  Secretary 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
James Steenbergen  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Laura Lyons   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Academic Administrator 
 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 

6



Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of January 19, 2016 – page 34 
 
2. Discussion of January 21st Regular Board Meeting Agenda Items 
 

The Board reviewed the January 21st Regular Board Meeting agenda items. 
 

 
11. ACTION ITEMS 
 
11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
11. A-2  Consider approval of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District  
  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2014 - 2015 year 
 

Mr. Steenbergen asked if the Assistant Superintendent for Instruction position is filled 
that is on the organization chart.  Dr. Randle said it is not and we might consider 
filling the position in the future as the district grows.  He also asked about unrestricted 
funds on page 10 of the report.  Ms. Ludwig said these are spendable funds, this 
page refers to the Government-wide financial statements which is everything taken as 
a whole.  Mr. Steenbergen asked if the $68m on page 20 are surplus funds and does 
the District look at a target as a padding for unexpected expenses. Ms. Ludwig said 
yes we do, the auditors prefer a 30 percent padding. 
 

11. A-3  Consider approval of budget amendment requests 
 

Mr. Steenbergen asked where the funding is coming from for the last two 
amendments.  Ms. Ludwig said they are net increases to the budget.  She said we 
had an excess revenue budget plus there are some revenue categories that will come 
in high this year and these expenses will be absorbed by current year revenue.  Mr. 
Steenbergen asked why this far in the year we see a need for this kind of increase.  
Ms. Ludwig said that Mr. McKeever identified the need for the chillers to be replaced 
at Campbell Elementary.  Dr. Randle said the other amendment is for the Summer 
School Now program which requires addressing the needs of the students now rather 
than waiting until the summer. 

 
11. A-7  Consider approval of Board Calendar for 2016 
 

Mr. Steenbergen asked if we do the August and December Board training report 
twice a year, he did not remember doing it in August.  Dr. Randle said the law 
requires it to be done in December and we will remove it from August.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked when they will review the District goals.  Ms. Kaminski said in July 
it says monitor progress, but she did not see where we reviewed them.  Dr. Randle 
said the Board/Superintendent Team Building is when they typically have reviewed 
the goals or priorities.  Ms. Roberts said when the gentleman from TASB came and it 
was the team building exercise, she does not remember reviewing any goals.  Ms. 
Kaminski said that was actually separate, she requested that meeting and it was out 
of the norm to have just a team building session.  Ms. Danziger said he brought them 
up throughout the workshop but they did not go into detail of deciding if they wanted 
to rearrange the goals at that time.  Ms. Roberts asked if we should specifically add 
that to the calendar in October.  She would like for the Board to come together and 
review the goals and perhaps change them if needed.  Dr. Randle reminded the 
Board that the Board/Superintendent Team Building is a requirement by law and what 
they have done in the past is the Board established the priorities during that time.  
This year we did not do this, but they can go back to do that.  Mr. Steenbergen said it 
sounds logical to do that in July since it is before the start of the school year.  Ms.  

7



Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of January 19, 2016 – page 35 
 
Danziger asked if that is a TASB guided event or if they as a Board can take care of 
this.  Dr. Randle recommends that it be facilitated.  Ms. Danziger asked Dr. Randle 
when he works with his Cabinet for the following school year, does he use the goals 
that the Board has set up.  Dr. Randle said the goals are listed out in our agenda and 
the Board establishes the priorities.  These priorities are what the Board wants to 
ensure the Administration is spending time, effort and energy on throughout the 
course of the year.  Ms. Danziger said if we did not do this, then maybe we need to 
take a look at the last priorities before we get too far along and see if there is anything 
that needs to be rearranged.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked if there is a place where the Board reviews Board Policies.  Dr. 
Randle said each time there is an update, the Board has typically reviewed those 
policies.  The District has not reviewed all policies.  He said the District brought in 
TASB and they cleaned up the policies.  He also said that TASB handles all the 
policies and makes sure there are no conflicts between Local policy and the law.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked about the Board Operating Procedures where it takes three 
members to add something to the agenda.  She asked if there is a time that the 
Board reviews this.  Ms. Kaminski said they must get that on the agenda to discuss. 
 
Ms. Roberts asked if there is an appropriate place or time they can review the 
Superintendent’s evaluation process.  Ms. Kaminski said they will be doing that on 
Thursday.  Ms. Roberts said we are reviewing the contract, but she is referring to 
reviewing the process and evaluation form.  Ms. Kaminski said this will be done in 
February or March.   

 
11. A-8  Consider adoption of 2016 - 2017 Student/Staff Instructional Calendar 
 

Ms. Danziger asked if we are now going by minutes and not days.  Mr. Rockwood 
said that is correct, the legislature passed HB2610 which goes from 180 instructional 
days to 75,600 minutes.  The calendar presented represents this.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked if that was the only thing that allowed us the two extra days off at 
Thanksgiving, no other holidays were taken away.  Mr. Rockwood said the calendar 
is exactly the same as the current 2015 – 2016 calendar but two extra days are given 
at Thanksgiving.  Since teachers work 187 day contract, professional development is 
started two days earlier in August.   
 
Ms. Kaminski said they will get 28 days off in nine months, and that does not include 
early release days.  Mr. Rockwood said they have accounted for six early release 
days, but they have not been placed on the calendar.  Ms. Kaminski said at one point 
the kids will be out three weeks within six weeks, she said she still goes back to 
instructional for the kids.  She is wondering how the students are getting quality 
instructional time by going to minutes.  Mr. Rockwood said the elementary principals 
commented that we are actually adding instructional minutes.   
 
Ms. Kaminski asked how sending the kids to the campuses 15 minutes early each 
day is going to affect the bus scheduling.  Mr. Rockwood said that currently the buses 
are already at the campuses at 7 a.m. and then going off on the secondary runs 
between 7 and 7:10 a.m.  The principals said the majority of the students are on 
campus well before 7:30 a.m.   
 
Ms. Kaminski asked how absences are going to be recorded.  Dr. Randle said they 
did not make that adjustment, absences are still in days.   

8



 
Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of January 19, 2016 – page 36 

 
Ms. Roberts asked which surrounding districts have elementary students start at 7:30 
a.m.  Mr. Rockwood said he is not aware of any direct neighbors.  He said we have 
talked to our parents and the community has responded they like the way it is 
currently.  She asked if we shaved off any minutes from secondary because of our 
busing.  Mr. Rockwood said 10 minutes was shaved off the instructional day at the 
secondary level.  This helps them with extracurricular activities, watching siblings, 
jobs, etc.   
 

11. A-11 Consider designation of Gulf Coast Area Association of School Boards' (GCAASB)  
  Positively Promoting Public Schools Committee 
 

Ms. Roberts asked who is the current person on this committee.  Dr. Randle said this 
is a brand new committee.   

 
11. A-14 Consider approval of traffic engineering study for the new Elementary #25 
 

Ms. Roberts asked if this will include a recommendation on whether a turning lane is 
needed.  Mr. McKeever said yes. 

 
11. A-15 Consider approval of geotechnical study for the new elementary #25 
 

Ms. Roberts asked if any of this can be applied to the next school since we are using 
a rubber stamp on the schools.  Mr. Steenbergen said they have to look at each site 
separately because of the soil conditions.   

 
11. B GOAL:  PERSONNEL 
 
11. B-1  Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2015-2016 school year  
 

Ms. Kaminski said she was reading an article about the changes that will be coming 
up in 2017-2018, she wanted to know if the new appraisers are being prepared for 
this new adjustment.  Dr. Bowen said they are and we have been piloting the new 
instrument and are in the second year of the pilot.   

 
12. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
12. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
12. A-5  Bond Update 
 

Ms. Kaminski clarified that there is a little over $8m in surplus from the 2011 Bond.  
Mr. Bailey said that is correct.   
 
Mr. Steenbergen asked about Elementary #24 and if we are still looking at November 
2016 for it to open.  Mr. Hoyt said there has been slippage due to weather and they 
are working on a recovery schedule.   
 

12. A-6  Transportation Update 
 
Mr. Steenbergen asked if we have any conclusions about accidents.  Mr. Jones said 
they are starting the process with the committee meetings, and they make a 
recommendation as to whether it was a preventable or non-preventable accident.   
 

9



Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of January 19, 2016 – page 37 
 
12. A-8  Possible projects from available 2011 bond funds 

 
Mr. Steenbergen said he expected some of the maintenance and operations projects 
to be in the normal budget and not separate projects, for example painting and carpet 
replacement.  Mr. Morgan said yes it is, but this helps them get caught up and stay on 
track.  Mr. Steenbergen expected this list to be longer, and asked if these were the 
ones the District thought were of higher priority.  Mr. Morgan said these are the 
projects that are coming up on their schedule.  Mr. Steenbergen was hoping to see 
more security related items.   
 
Ms. Roberts agreed with Mr. Steenbergen and expected to see more updates of 
facilities and security updates.  She thought a lot of the items on the list would be in a 
regular budget instead of excess funds.   
 
Dr. Harrell asked if the campuses make facilities requests and wanted to know how 
long that list might be.  Mr. Morgan said that list currently is not that long.   
 
Ms. Danziger asked if the older schools have the security and vestibules installed.  
Ms. Roberts said at Huggins and some other older schools, this is not really a 
vestibule.  A patron walks in and you have to be buzzed in, but you have direct 
access to the cafeteria.  She feels it is not really a solution. 
 
Dr. Randle reminded the Board the Administration provided them with a list.  Mr. 
Steenbergen said they are looking for opportunities to put these funds to the best use 
in the District.  He said there are security issues, and that is on his list and anything 
else that might be safety related. 

 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION  PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional 
personnel 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Superintendent's Evaluation and Contract 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land  
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional  
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board did not convene in Closed Session. 
 
 
 

10



Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of January 19, 2016 – page 38 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
Kathryn Kaminski     Anna Gonzales 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 
 

11



 
 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 

 
The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Regular Meeting Held 
 
On this the 21st day of January 2016, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Regular Session in Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Ms. Kathryn 
Kaminski, at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
 
Kathryn Kaminski  President 
Kay Danziger   Vice President 
Anna Gonzales  Secretary 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
James Steenbergen  Member 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Laura Lyons   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Academic Administrator 
Rick Morris   Attorney 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
2.         OPENING OF MEETING 
 
The prayer was led by Ms. Lyons, and the pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 
 
 

12



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting January 21, 2016 – page 40 
 
3. STUDENT REPORTS 
 

a. Arredondo Elementary – “Back to Nature” 
 
Students from Arredondo Elementary School went “Back to Nature” with a visit to Pine 
Cove. Tristyn Frazier, Bryson Vyvial, Jaden Russell, and Harmony Jones explained their 
trip to Pine Cove.   
 

4. RECOGNITIONS/AWARDS 
  

a. George Ranch High School Football State Champions 
 

Coach Ricky Tullos and players presented the Board of Trustees the 2015 state 
championship trophy.  

 
5. INTRODUCTIONS 
 
       Dr. Kathleen Bowen introduced new staff to the Board: 

Kayse Lazar, assistant principal at George Ranch High  
William Oschlor Flemming, campus coordinator/head coach at Fulshear High 

 
 
6. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 
 
 William Ferguson thanked the Board for educating his children and keeping them safe.  He 

has been a police officer since 1992 and has quietly watched the schools over the years.  He 
said they have done a great job, but wants to remind the Board to be aware.  He brought up 
safety, security and things for the Board to think about on the campuses. 

 
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. DECEMBER 15, 2015 SPECIAL MEETING (WORKSHOP) 
 
 It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Mr. Steenbergen that the Board of 

Trustees approve the minutes of December 15, 2015 Special Meeting (Workshop).  
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
B. DECEMBER 17, 2015 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
 It was moved by Ms. Gonzales and seconded by Dr. Harrell that the Board of Trustees 

approve the minutes of December 17, 2015 Regular Board Meeting.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
8. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
 

a. Meetings and Events 
 

Ms. Gonzales reported the Finance Committee met and was presented a report on the 
annual audit.  The auditors reported the District received a clean opinion, there were no 
material weakness, has a healthy fund balance, and is in stable financial condition.   
 
Ms. Danziger attended the 25th anniversary celebration at Austin Elementary with the 
opening of the time capsule.   

13



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting January 21, 2016 – page 41 

 
Mr. Steenbergen reported the Technology Committee did not meet but reported there will 
be an upgrade of security cameras.   
 
Ms. Gonzales reported that she took a tour of the Alternative Learning Center (ALC) and 
she thought it might be something all Board members might like to do.  It included the boot 
camp, 1621 Place, and the Juvenile Detention Center.  She was extremely impressed with 
everything.   
 
Ms. Kaminski was invited from TASB to attend a Crucial Conversation pilot program.   

   
9. SUPERINTENDENT REPORTS 

 
a. Meetings and Events    

   
Superintendent Randle recognized the Lamar CISD Board of Trustees as part of the 
District-wide celebration of School Board Recognition Month in January. 

 
b. Information for Immediate Attention 

 
10. Public Hearing - LCISD Accountability Performance Report for 2014 - 2015 
 

Ms. Kaminski opened the meeting to the public at 7:34 p.m.  Mr. Brian Moore, Director of 
Research and Accountability, gave a presentation on the LCISD Accountability Performance 
Report for 2014-2015.  Ms. Roberts asked what justifies serious discipline.  Mr. Moore said 
they are anything from fights to possession of drugs.  There being no other discussion, the 
hearing was closed to the public at 7:44 p.m. 
 

 
ACTION ITEMS FOR CONSENT OF APPROVAL:  11. A-1; 11. A-3 - 11. A-6; 11. A-8 – 11. A-9;    
11. A-12 – 11. A-15; and 11. B-1 
 
It was moved by Mr. Steenbergen and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of Trustees approve 
these action items as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
11. A-1 Ratification of Quarterly Investment Report 
 

ratified the quarterly investment report as submitted for the quarter ending November 
30, 2015.  (See inserted pages 41-A – 41-F.) 

 
11. A-3 Approval of budget amendment requests 
 

approved budget amendment requests as attached.  (See inserted page 41-G.) 

 
11. A-4 Ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 
 
  ratified the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 
11. A-5 Approval of resolution approving list of qualified investment brokers/dealers 
 

approved the attached resolution approving a list of qualified investment 
broker/dealers.  (See inserted page 41-H.) 

14



 
 

Minutes of Regular Board Meeting January 21, 2016 – page 42 
 
11. A-6 Approval of Donations to the District, including, but not limited to: 
 

a. Hutchison Elementary School 
b. Polly Ryon Middle School 
c. Terry High School 
d. Thomas Elementary School 

 
approved donations to the district with addendum. 
 

11. A-8 Adoption of 2016 - 2017 Student/Staff Instructional Calendar 
 

approved the student/staff instructional calendar (attached) for 2016 – 2017, as 
recommended by the District-wide Student Improvement Council (DSIC).  (See 
inserted page 42-A.) 

 
11. A-9 Approval of resolutions proclaiming 
 

a. Black History Month  
 

approved the attached resolution proclaiming February 2016 as “Black History Month” 
in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District.  (See inserted page 42-B.) 

 
b. Career and Technical Education Month 

 
approved the attached resolution proclaiming February 2016 as “Career and Technical 
Education Month” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District.  (See 
inserted page 42-C.) 

 
c. School Counselor Week 
 

approved the attached resolution proclaiming the week of February 8-11, 2016 as 
“School Counselor Week” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District.  
(See inserted page 42-D.) 
 

11. A-12 Adoption of the Dean Leaman Junior High School mascot and school colors 
 

approved Chargers as the mascot and purple and black as the school colors for Dean 
Leaman Junior High campus. 

 
11. A-13 Approval of chiller replacement for Campbell Elementary School 
 

approved Texas Air Systems for the purchase and installation of two (2) 210 ton 
chillers for Campbell Elementary School in the amount of $327,400 and amend 
budgets as necessary.   

 
11. A-14 Approval of traffic engineering study for the new Elementary #25 
 

approved Traffic Engineers, Inc. for the traffic engineering study for the new 
Elementary #35 in the amount of $13,000.  (See inserted pages 42-E – 42-F.) 
 

  

15



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting January 21, 2016 – page 43 
 
11. A-15 Approval of geotechnical study for the new elementary #25 

 
approved Terracon, Inc. for the geotechnical engineering services for the design of the 
new Elementary #25 in the amount of $6,100.  (See inserted pages 43-A – 43-F.) 
 

11. B GOAL:  PERSONNEL 

 
11. B-1 Approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2015-2016 school year 
 

approved the 2015-2016 appraiser(s) who have recently become certified or are new to 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District (LCISD).  
 

11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
11. A-2 Consider approval of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District  
  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2014 - 2015 year 

 
It was moved by Ms. Roberts and seconded by Mr. Steenbergen that the Board of 
Trustees approve the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Comprehensive 
Annual Financial report for the 2014 – 2015 fiscal year as presented.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

11. A-7 Consider approval of Board Calendar for 2016 
 

It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Ms. Gonzales that the Board approve 
the revised Board Calendar for 2016 as presented. 
 
Ms. Roberts asked if the Superintendent’s evaluation in January, is the same time they 
evaluate the process of the evaluation.  Mr. Morris said they cannot change the 
instrument this year, but at the beginning of the next cycle they could examine the 
instrument.  This can just be an agenda item, it does not have to be on the Board 
calendar.   
 
Mr. Steenbergen said that in the Superintendent contract they are looking at tonight, it 
says the Board shall evaluate and assess in writing the performance of the 
Superintendent at least twice a year in the months of January and June.  Dr. Randle 
said it is placed in there so the Board can do a formative assessment of the 
Superintendent.  The calendar is designed to serve as a guide for the Board.  Mr. 
Morris said they are required by administrative code to evaluate twice a year, typically 
not all districts place it within their published calendar.  Ms. Roberts suggested they 
add it to June to remind them.   
 
It was moved by Ms. Roberts and seconded by Mr. Steenbergen that the Board amend 
the revised Board Calendar for 2016 to include the Superintendent Evaluation in the 
month of June.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The original motion carried unanimously. 

 
11. A-10 Consider approval of nomination of candidate for position on the Texas  
  Association of School Boards (TASB) Board of Directors 
 

No action was taken. 
 

16



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting January 21, 2016 – page 44 
 
11. A-11 Consider designation of Gulf Coast Area Association of School Boards'  
  (GCAASB) Positively Promoting Public Schools Committee 
 

It was moved by Mr. Steenbergen and seconded by Dr. Harrell that the Board 
designate Kay Danziger to work with Gulf Coast Area Association of School Boards’ 
(GCAASB) Positively Promoting Public Schools Committee.  The motion carried 
unanimously.   

 
12. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
12. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
12. A-1 Board Policies for First Reading 
 
12. A-2 Tax Collection Report 
 
12. A-3 Payments for Construction Projects 
 
12. A-4 Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 
 
12. A-5 Bond Update 
   

a.  2011 
 

Ms. Roberts asked for an update on the Ag buildings.  Mr. McKeever said that Ag Barn 
No. 2 is in the design committee stage.  The District does not have land for Ag Barn 
No. 3, but it will be funded under the 2014 bond. 
 

  b.  2014 
 
12. A-6 Transportation Update 
 
12. A-7 Proposed Budget Calendar 
 
12. A-8 Possible projects from available 2011 bond funds 
 
12. A-9 TASB 2014 - 2016 Advocacy Agenda 
 
12. A-10 HB 2610 and Bell Schedules 

 
Ms. Kaminski talked to some people from another district and they chose to not go by 
the minutes, they decreased their holidays by two at Thanksgiving.  She said we have 
talked about adding the elementary schools going to school 15 minutes early and 
letting the high schools out 10 minutes early, and wondered how this will impact 
transportation.  Mr. Rockwood said there should be no impact on transportation for the 
elementary campuses, the majority of the buses are there on the campuses at 7 a.m.  
We see no issues in making these adjustments. 

 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, AND 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
  

17



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting January 21, 2016 – page 45 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional personnel 
b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Superintendent’s Evaluation and Contract 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land 
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the duty 

of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of  
the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including the 
grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 8:28 p.m. for the purposes listed above. 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 9:58 p.m. 

 
12. A-1(a) Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional  
  personnel 
 

It was moved by Mr. Steenbergen and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of 
Trustees approve personnel as presented.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 

  Employed 
 
  Salas Saenz, Melisa  TBD  Assistant Principal    
        Bowie Elementary 
 
12. A-1(d) Superintendent’s Evaluation and Contract 
 

It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Mr. Torres that the Board of Trustees 
extend the Superintendent’s contract for one additional year.  The motion carried 
unanimously.   
 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 Discussion of Board Operating Procedures 
 
 Information Item on possible projects from available bond funds with suggestions made by the  
 Board with a plan for the Huggins parking lot 
 
 Information Item on more sidewalks at Lamar Consolidated High School 
 
 
 
 

18



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting January 21, 2016 – page 46 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:03 p.m. 
 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
Kathryn Kaminski     Anna Gonzales 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

19



 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ADDITIONAL LOCAL STATE  
COMPENSATORY EDUCATION CRITERIA 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve additional local State Compensatory Education 
criteria. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
The LEA may serve students who meet local eligibility criteria if the local criteria have 
been adopted by the Board of Trustees of the LEA. The LEA is requesting that the 
Board adopt the following additional local State Compensatory Education criteria: 
 

- Students who have failed to master grade level curriculum at any reporting 
period.  

 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
The Lamar Consolidated Independent School District has policies and procedures in 
place for the identification and reporting of At-Risk students. The policies can be found 
in EHBC (LOCAL) and EHBC (LEGAL), which includes the definition of At-Risk 
students.  
 
Local Criteria of At-Risk Student 
 
In addition to state criteria outlined in TEC §29.081 for identifying students who are at-
risk of dropping out of school, there is a provision that allows the Board of Trustees of a 
school district to adopt local eligibility criteria (TEC §29.081(g). The following local 
criteria currently identify students who are at-risk for dropping out of school: 
 

1.    Absent more than nine days in a semester; 
2.   Determined to be truant by the judicial system; and 
3.   Exhibits serious or chronic misconduct that negatively affects academic  
  performance and requires removal from the student’s regular classroom  
  instruction for more than nine days in a semester. 

 
Submitted by: Valerie Vogt, Academic Administrator 

 Dr. Marva O’Neal, Coordinator Federal Programs 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

10.A.#1. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

20



 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of budget amendment requests as 
attached. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The proposed budget amendments require school board approval because budgeted 
funds are being reallocated between functional categories and/or new budgets are 
being established.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Budget amendments are mandated by the state for budgeted funds reallocated from 
one functional level, and state and/or federal project to another.  These budget changes 
are usually the result of unexpected levels of expenditures in certain categories and 
amendments are for legal compliance. Other budget amendments are determined by 
the School Board.   
 
Since the operating budget for Lamar CISD is adopted at the functional level, budget 
revisions are required for reallocations between functional levels or when new budgets 
are being established. All necessary budget amendments must be formally adopted by 
the School Board and recorded in the Board minutes.  (TEA Financial Accountability 
System Resource Guide, Financial Accounting & Reporting, Update 15.0) 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
Resource:       Yvonne Dawson, RTSBA, Budget and Treasury Officer   
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 

10.B.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

21



Terry High School is requesting a budget change to pay security for extra-curricular 
events. 
 
199-36 Cocurricular/Extracurricular Activities (400.00) 
199-52 Security & Monitoring Services 400.00 
 

 
Hutchison Elementary is requesting a budget change to pay for counselor to attend the 
Texas School Counselor Association conference.  
 
199-23 School Leadership (400.00) 
199-31 Guidance and Counseling 400.00 
 

 
Frost Elementary is requesting a budget change to pay for wireless services. Per the 
TEA Resource Guide, all utility costs should be coded to function 51. 
 
199-11 Classroom Instruction (1,500.00) 
199-51 Plant Maintenance & Operations 1,500.00 
  

22



 
 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENT REPORTS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Trustees ratify the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Financial reporting is intended to provide information useful for many purposes.  The 
reporting function helps fulfill government’s duty to be publicly accountable, as well as to 
help satisfy the needs of users who rely on the reports as an important source of 
information for decision making.  

Financial reports and statements are end products of the reporting process.  You will 
find attached the following reports: 

 Ratification of January 2016 Disbursements, all funds 

o List of disbursements for the month by type of expenditure 

 Financial Reports 

o Year-to-Date Cash Receipts and Expenditures, General Fund only 

o Investment Report 

 

Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommended for ratification: 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

   10.B.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

23



SCHEDULE OF JANUARY 2016 DISBURSEMENTS 
 

 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
All disbursements made by the Accounting Department are submitted to the Board of Trustees for ratification on a 
monthly basis.  Disbursements made during the month of January total $24,186,770 and are shown below by 
category: 
 

 

3-Digit Object Description Disbursements

611/612 Salaries and Wages, All Personnel 14,126,724         

614 Employee Benefits 729,091

621 Professional Services 71,368

623 Education Services Center 39,649

624 Contracted Maintenance and Repair Services 424,637

625 Utilities 167,828

626 Rentals and Operating Leases 14,833

629 Miscellaneous Contracted Services 371,319

631 Supplies and Materials for Maintenance and Operations 232,208

632 Textbooks and Other Reading Materials 271,274

633 Testing Materials 16,970

634 Food Service 549,914

639 General Supplies and Materials 663,291

641 Travel and Subsistence -- Employee and Student 162,414

642 Insurance and Bonding Costs 1,000

649 Miscellaneous Operating Costs/Fees and Dues 519,165

651 Debt Service 500

661 Land Purchase and/or Improvements 11,290

662 Building Purchase, Construction, and/or Improvements 5,550,545

663 Furniture & Equipment - $5,000 or more per unit cost 251,916

131 Inventory Purchases 7,318
217 Operating Transfers, Loans and Reimbursements 322

571 Property Taxes 1,377

573/575/592 Miscellaneous Refunds/Reimbursements to Campuses 1,817

Total 24,186,770
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The report above represents all expenditures made during the month of January 2016 and previous month 
purchasing card transactions. The detailed check information is available upon request. 
 

                                        
 

24



LAMAR CONSOLIDATED I.S.D.
GENERAL FUND

YEAR TO DATE CASH RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES
(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)
AS OF JANUARY 31, 2016

 

PERCENT
AMENDED BUDGET ACTUAL/

CASH RECEIPTS BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET

5700-LOCAL REVENUES 136,191,018.00 114,487,753.00 (21,703,265.00) 84.1%

5800-STATE PROGRAM REVENUES 96,167,598.00 46,117,246.00 (50,050,352.00) 48.0%
  

5900-FEDERAL PROGRAM REVENUES 1,745,000.00 852,138.00 (892,862.00) 48.8%

7900- OTHER RESOURCES - 719,593.00 719,593.00

TOTAL- REVENUES 234,103,616.00 162,176,730.00 (71,926,886.00) 69.3%

EXPENDITURES

6100-PAYROLL COSTS 196,357,667.00 73,133,263.00 123,224,404.00 37.2%
 

6200-PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTED SVCS. 21,850,133.00 5,030,693.00 16,819,440.00 23.0%
  

6300-SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 12,775,357.00 3,754,731.00 9,020,626.00 29.4%
  

6400-OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 4,303,842.00 3,860,622.00 443,220.00 89.7%
  

6600-CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,011,455.00 574,231.00 1,437,224.00 28.5%

TOTAL-EXPENDITURES 237,298,454.00 86,353,540.00 150,944,914.00 36.4%

25



26



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF COLLATERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached collateral security agreement 
with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 
N.A. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
As a publicly funded entity, the District is required by statute to have collateral 
pledged by its depository bank to protect its uninsured deposits.  To facilitate the 
delivery of securities pledged for the District and to maintain the safety of the 
investments, a safekeeping (third party custodial) account must be held by the 
District.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This agreement between the District and the two banks is required to establish 
and maintain one or more accounts with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and The Bank of 
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. for the purpose of facilitating the 
management of collateral pledged for the District as security for deposits on 
account. 
 
  
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
              Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

  10.B.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

27



28



29



30



31



32



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF UPDATES TO ACCUMULATED LEAVE BUYBACK 
PLANS AND RELATED REVISIONS TO BOARD POLICY 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of revisions to Internal Revenue Code 
Section 401(a) and 403(b) Plans and related revisions to Board Policy DEC (LOCAL).   
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
As defined by Board Policy DEC (LOCAL), upon retirement from the District, employees 
are paid for eligible accumulated leave.  In December 2001, the Tax Deferred 
Accumulated Leave Buyback Plan was established pursuant to Section 401(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (IRC).  This plan was established for the benefit of employees, 
allowing the investment of their post-retirement payment into tax deferred plan.  To 
maximize benefits available to employees, an additional plan regulated by Section 
403(b) of the IRC was established to accommodate leave payments that exceed the 
amount of contributions allowed by Section 401(a).   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Due to revisions of the IRC, it is necessary to periodically review and revise Plan 
documents.  The attached documents are a result of such review.  In addition, certain 
updates to Board Policy DEC (LOCAL) were necessary. 
 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Dr. Kathleen Bowen, Chief Human Resource Officer    
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

  10.B.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



Lamar CISD 

Accumulated Leave Policy 

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS DEC 

LEAVES AND ABSENCES (LOCAL) 

079901 

Pages 6 and 7 

 

Suggested revised policy 

 
 Current Policy Proposed Revised Policy 

REIMBURSEMENT 

OF 

LEAVE UPON 

RETIREMENT 

An employee hired by the District 

before September 19, 1991, who 

retires after ten or more years of 

continuous TRS creditable service in 

the District, in accordance with TRS 

provisions, shall be paid for the unused 

leave earned in the District, to a 

maximum of 150 days. To receive the 

payment, the employee must submit a 

written application for payment within 

90 days after termination of 

employment and provide 

documentation that payment of service 

retirement benefits from TRS has 

begun. This benefit shall be available 

only to employees who are eligible for 

and actually receive a service 

retirement annuity upon termination of 

employment. The payment shall be 

computed on the basis of the number 

of days of leave accumulated, times 

the average salary earned per day for 

the last five years of employment, 

including the year of retirement and 

the immediately preceding four years, 

in accordance with the following 

schedule: 

 

   

TRS Creditable 

Years of Service     Percent of Payment 

  30+ years                         100 

  25–29 years                       90 

  20–24 years                       80 

  15–19 years                       75 

  10–14 years                       70 

 

 

If an employee who meets the  

eligibility criteria for the buy-back 

provision dies while employed with 

the District or within 90 days after 

termination from the District, the 

An employee hired by the District before 

September 19, 1991, or hired after this date 

whose employment contract includes the 

payment for unused accumulated leave, who 

retires after ten or more years of continuous 

TRS creditable service in the District, in 

accordance with TRS provisions, shall be 

paid for the unused leave earned in the 

District, to a maximum of 150 days or the 

maximum number of days provided in his 

or her employment contract. To receive the 

payment, the employee must submit a 

written application for payment within 90 

days after termination of employment and 

provide documentation that payment of 

service retirement benefits from TRS has 

begun. This benefit shall be available only 

to employees who are eligible for and 

actually receive a service retirement annuity 

upon termination of employment. The 

payment shall be computed on the basis of 

the number of days of leave accumulated, 

times the average salary earned per day for 

the last five years of employment, including 

the year of retirement and the immediately 

preceding four years, in accordance with the 

following schedule: 

 

   

 TRS Creditable 

Years of Service     Percent of Payment 

  30+ years                         100 

  25–29 years                       90 

  20–24 years                       80 

  15–19 years                       75 

  10–14 years                       70 

 

 

If an employee who meets the eligibility 

criteria for the buy-back provision dies 

while employed with the District or within 

90 days after termination from the District, 

the District shall pay the employee’s estate 

121



District shall pay the employee’s estate 

for the unused leave in accordance 

with these provisions. An employee 

whose period of assignment is less 

than 12 months shall be considered 

employed for 12 months for the 

purpose of these provisions. An 

eligible employee must deposit the 

unused leave payoff into a federally 

approved 401(a) plan. The employee 

has the option to withdraw the entire 

amount immediately from the plan, 

invest in an annuity product offered by 

the plan administrators, invest in a 

money-market account, or the payoff 

may be transferred to an annuity that 

the employee has in place. An 

employee who is younger than 55 

years of age at retirement shall be 

ineligible for the 401(a) plan and must 

take the unused leave payoff in a 

lump-sum payment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

for the unused leave in accordance with 

these provisions. An employee whose 

period of assignment is less than 12 months 

shall be considered employed for 12 months 

for the purpose of these provisions. The 

District  must deposit the unused leave 

payoff into a federally approved 401(a) 

plan, up to the contribution limit under 

federal tax laws for the calendar year in 

which the contribution is made.  If the value 

of the unused accumulated leave payable 

under this Policy exceeds the contribution 

limit for the 401(a) plan, then the remaining 

amount shall be contributed to a non-

elective employer paid 403(b) plan.  If the 

contribution to the 403(b) plan exceeds the 

limit under tax law for the calendar year, the 

District may pay the remaining amount to 

the employee in cash as taxable income or 

may make one or more post-employment 

contributions in future years to the 403(b) 

plan, to the extent permitted by tax law. The 

employee has the option to withdraw the 

entire amount immediately from the 401(a) 

and 403(b) plans, invest in an annuity 

product or other investment options offered 

by the plan administrators, invest in a 

money-market account, or the payoff may 

be transferred to a voluntary 403(b) or other 

eligible tax deferred account that the 

employee has in place. An employee who is 

younger than 55 years of age at retirement 

and/or is to be paid less than $1,000.00 for 

unused accumulated leave shall be 

ineligible for the 401(a) and 403(b) plans 

and must take the unused leave payoff in a 

lump-sum payment. 

 

122



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT TO ESTABLISH A SAFEKEEPING 
ACCOUNT WITH WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached agreement establishing a 
safekeeping account with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
To facilitate the delivery of securities purchased by the District, and to maintain the 
safety of the investments made, a safekeeping account must be held by the 
District.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This agreement is required to establish and maintain one or more accounts with 
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. for the purpose of purchasing, selling, borrowing, lending, 
or otherwise facilitating securities transactions. 
 
 
  
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
 Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 
 Yvonne Dawson, RTSBA, Budget and Treasury Officer 
  
 
 
 
Recommended for Approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

10.B.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

123



124



125



126



127



128



 
 

 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT (BPA)  
WITH HON COMPANY LLC 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of a Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) 
with HON Company LLC.   
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
This agreement will allow Lamar CISD to procure furniture at an aggressive discount 
from HON Company LLC via our inter-local with The Cooperative Purchasing Network 
(TCPN) ensuring purchasing compliancy.  Once signed, the BPA will allow the District to 
enjoy discounts ranging from 58 percent to 69 percent off list price for office furniture, 
school furniture, filing and storage systems.  Lamar CISD has successfully utilized HON 
Company furniture over the years and has found value with the manufacturer’s 
commercial grade furnishings and accommodating ten (10) year warranty program. The 
BPA program requires the District to purchase a minimum of $500,000 of list cost 
furnishings during the term of this agreement.  With the future opening of Fulshear High 
School, Leaman Junior High, and Elementary #24 before the end of 2016, the District 
will easily surpass the requirement.   
 
Additionally, the BPA will not restrict the District from hiring any company in the HON 
network to install the furnishings at each site, nor will it exercise any exclusive rights 
over the District when we purchase furniture from other manufacturers.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This agreement shall be effective as of March 1, 2016 and shall remain in effect until 
February 28, 2017. 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Michele Leach, RTSBA, Purchasing & Materials Manager 
    
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

   10.B.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

129



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

February 3, 2016 
 
 

Blanket Purchase Agreement 
 

BPA Number: Lamar CISD/LISD                  
(This number should be placed on all orders) 

 
This Blanket Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”) is effective as of 

3/1/2016 (“Effective Date”), by and between The HON Company LLC (“HON”) and 
Lamar CISD (the “Agency”). HON and Agency have entered into this Agreement in 
order for the Agency to purchase HON commercial products (“Products”) and related 
services (“Services”) directly from HON. HON may utilize its network of authorized 
dealers in the performance of this Agreement. 

 
Except as expressly stated herein, Agency’s purchase of Products and Services 

are based upon the pricing, terms and conditions set forth in HON’s TCPN Contract # 
R142208, by and between HON and The Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN) (the 
“TCPN Contract”). The pricing and available Products and Services of the HON TCPN 
Contract may be amended, revised, or renewed from time to time pursuant to the terms 
of the TCPN Contract, and all such changes, amendments and revisions are incorporated 
by reference herein without need to formally amend this Agreement. 

 
During the following dates: 3/1/2016 – 2/28/2017, the Agency agrees to: 

purchase a minimum of $500,000 List of product from HON (“Annual Purchase 
Projection”), determined on cumulative invoiced purchases during the term. Agency 
acknowledges HON as a preferred vendor and agrees to promote HON agreement to 
eligible entities. Agency will give HON access to a list of all entities eligible to purchase 
against this agreement. If applicable, Agency will explore product opportunities with 
HON. In consideration for this, the Agency shall be entitled to purchase HON products at 
the discounts off the current list price in effect under the HON TCPN Contract. As of the 
Effective Date, the current discounting applicable to Agency’s purchases of Products is as 
follows: 

 

 
 

 
HON reserves the right to deny the Agency future Blanket Purchase Agreements.  
The pricing applicable to installation in the TCPN Contract shall not apply to any 
purchases for Services made by Agency from HON through an authorized dealer. All 
pricing for installation Services must be negotiated on a case by case basis between 
Agency and an authorized dealer. 

 
All of Agency’s orders must be made out to The HON Company LLC and shall reference 
the TCPN Contract number: R142208, and the BPA number at the top of this Agreement. 
Each order must have a single “ship-to” destination within the United States in order for 
the freight to be paid by HON. 

 
This Agreement expires 2/28/2017. 

Systems 
and 

Pedestals

Vertical and 
Lateral 

Files,Storage
Tables, Desking,  

Casegoods

HON 
Branded 
Seating

 Basyx Branded 
Products Education   

All Size Orders 69.0% 65.0% 61.0% 61.0% 60.0% 58.0%

130



The following office(s) are hereby authorized to place orders under this Agreement: 

Agency Name:   Lamar Consolidated ISD

Address:   3911 Avenue I

City, State, Zip Code:  Rosenberg TX 77471

Will orders be placed by one centralized purchasing location?   yes

If no, please list other locations that will be utilizing this Agreement: 

_ 

_ 

Orders may be sent to the HON Servicing Dealer providing the product installation 
services for review prior to order placement. 
HON shall invoice the Agency upon shipment of Product. 
Payment terms are net 30 days, with no additional discount for early payment. 
Product shall be shipped not to exceed 60 days after receipt of a valid order. 

The Agency: 

_ 
(Printed Name) 

_ 
(Signature) 

_ 
(Title) 

_ 
(Date) 

The HON Company LLC: 

_ 
(Printed Name) 

_ 
(Signature) 

_ 
(Title) 

_ 
(Date) 

Kathryn Kaminski

Board President, Lamar CISD

February 18, 2016

131



 
 

 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BOARD POLICIES 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve second reading of the following policies: 
 

 Localized Policy Manual Update 102 

 Localized Policy Manual Update 103 
  
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
A primary function of the Board of Trustees is to adopt policies for the operation of the 
District.  Local policies are customized to provide a procedure to enforce the legal 
policies and District guidelines. 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

 10.B.#7. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

132



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
DIAGNOSTICIANS’ WEEK 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming March 7 – 11, 
2016 as “Diagnosticians’ Week” in Texas and in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Diagnosticians provide the leadership in working with parents, teachers and other 
professionals to develop a coordinated program for students with special needs. 
 
Lamar CISD will use this week as a time to recognize, honor and thank the educational 
diagnosticians for their dedication and for the quality of their work. 
 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
   
 
Recommended for Approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

   10.B.#8a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

133



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, Diagnosticians’ Week has historically been 

proclaimed by the Governor of Texas to be recognized the first full 

week of March throughout Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, Diagnosticians in Texas play an important role in 

the educational, social and emotional development of our children; and 

 

WHEREAS; Diagnosticians use specialized training to identify 

learning disabilities and recommend appropriate special education 

intervention for students; and 

 

WHEREAS, Diagnosticians are in a unique position to consult 

with professionals in other fields when speech, physical, medical and 

emotional problems are indicated; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of 

Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 

declares March 7 – 11, 2016 as Diagnosticians’ Week in the Lamar 

Consolidated Independent School District and asks our community to 

recognize the invaluable contributions made by Educational 

Diagnosticians. 

 

Adopted this 18th day of February 2016. 

 

 

 

 

Kathryn Kaminski, President  Anna Gonzales, Secretary 

134



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
TEXAS PUBLIC SCHOOLS WEEK 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming the week of 
February 29 – March 4, 2016 as Texas Public Schools Week in the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District.   
 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Texas has historically been dedicated to a strong public education system. Texas Public 
Schools Week is a tradition begun by the Masonic Lodges of Texas in 1950 and places 
special emphasis upon education during this celebration of Texas Public Schools. This 
week marks more than 160 years of a free public education in Texas.   
 
Lamar CISD will be among the more than 1,000 school districts across the state 
celebrating Texas Public Schools Weeks during March 2016. This year’s theme—
“Public Education: A Texas Tradition”—highlights the opportunities the school children 
of Texas will have through Texas Public Schools.  

In every field—science, engineering, music, technology, etc.—you see the positive 
effects of Texas Public Schools. Our students, teachers and staff members continue to 
give us excellent reasons to celebrate their innumerable achievements. 

Parents and community members are invited into the classrooms of Lamar CISD to 
watch learners in action and the educational process at work. 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
   
 
Recommended for Approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 

 

  10.B.#8b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

135



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, the students of our Texas public schools hold the promise of a 
future in their capable hands; AND 

WHEREAS, the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District provides 
the tools, framework and solid foundation vital for the future of our children; AND 

WHEREAS, the dedicated efforts of parents, educators and community 
leaders provide the necessary support and strength to our schools, thus 
providing our children a quality education; AND 

WHEREAS, students attain a higher level of achievement because of the 
commitment to excellence and focus on continued improvement in our schools; 
AND 

WHEREAS, for more than 50 years, the observance of Celebrate Texas 
Public Schools Week has demonstrated the significant impact of education on 
our future and our communities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District encourages all citizens to 
reaffirm their commitment to public schools during Celebrate Texas Public 
Schools Week, February 29 – March 4, 2016 and urges all citizens to support 
the theme “Public Education: A Texas Tradition,” by taking time to visit our 
schools to demonstrate to our students the impact public education has had in 
raising past, present and future generations of Texans.  
 
 Adopted this 18th day of February 2016.  

 

_______________________           _____________________ 
Kathryn Kaminski, President           Anna Gonzales, Secretary 

 

136



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF LAMAR CISD ZONING COMMITTEE  
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ELEMENTARY #24 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve the 2015-2016 Attendance Boundary Committee’s (ABC) 
recommendation to establish the attendance boundary area for Elementary #24 and to allow 
residents living in planning units 4A, 4D, and 5A to “declare” which elementary campus they will 
attend—Elementary #24 or their current school. 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
The 2015-2016 ABC met on January 4 and 11 to consider administrative recommendations for 
the attendance boundary lines for Elementary #24. This campus is in the new Creekside Ranch 
neighborhood along FM 359. Following discussion, the ABC reached consensus to move 
forward to public input. 
 
A public meeting for input from the residents in the impacted area was held on February 1 in the 
Briscoe Junior High auditorium. Flyers were sent home with all Huggins and Hubenak 
elementary students. Parents in the Skyward system received an email and the District and 
campus websites included temporary banners highlighting the zoning process. News releases 
were also sent out to the media during the zoning process. 
 
The ABC listened to the concerns of the community during the public input meeting and decided 
to meet once more on February 8. The ABC reviewed all of the proposals and the public input 
presented before reaching consensus to bring the attached recommendation for Board 
approval. The ABC made no boundary line changes following the public input meeting. 
However, it did make a recommendation to allow residents living in planning units 4A, 4D and 
5A to “declare” which elementary campus they will attend—Elementary #24 or their current 
school. 
 
The ABC’s recommendation is based on the latest demographic projections, facility capacity, 
current student enrollment numbers and optimal utilization of existing facilities. The committee 
also looked closely at both long and short term needs to alleviate overcrowding while minimizing 
the movement of students from existing zones. 
 
Other points considered: 
 

 To keep neighborhoods and communities together; 

 To accommodate growth while minimizing the likelihood that students will be rezoned 
back to their current school in the future; 

 To provide relief at Hubenak and Huggins; and 

 To anticipate the opening of Elementary #25 in 2017-2018 to further relieve Huggins. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
  
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

   10.B.#9. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 
 

137



Elem #24
662
688
734
818
895

Huggins
862

1,130
1,457
1,902
2,397

Hubenak
787
840
879
898
904

FM 1093

Gaston Fulshear Rd Bellaire
Blvd Grand

Parkway

FM
359

FM 723

2F

5A

11B

11A

11D

11C

19

13B

16
14A

15B
14B

12A

15A
12B

10B

21

23C

24C

23A

25A
23B

272625B24E9 28A

8B

7

4D

24G
10A10D

10C

20C

13C
13A

22

2C

20D

5D

5F

5I
5B

5C

6B
6C

6D

6E

5G

6F

6G

5H

6H

4B

2A

5E
4C

2B

5J

4A

Ü
0 0.5 1Miles

Board of Trustees
has made no

decision regarding
attendance zones.

DRAFT

Lamar C.I.S.D. Elementary Attendance Zone Planning

ABC Recommendation 1-11-16
Projected Resident 

EE-5th Grade Students
2016-17
2017-18
2018-19
2019-20
2020-21

Colors = Elementary Zones
Black Outline = Secondary Zones

138



Lamar C.I.S.D.
Elementary Attendance Zone Planning

Projected Resident EE-5th Grade Students

ABC Recommendation 1-11-16

Fall Fall Fall Fall Fall Fall Fall Fall Fall
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Hubenak Elementary
Practical Capacity 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750

Students Projected 787 840 879 898 904 909 915 920 925
Percent Utilization 105% 112% 117% 120% 121% 121% 122% 123% 123%

Student Margin -37 -90 -129 -148 -154 -159 -165 -170 -175

Huggins Elementary
Practical Capacity 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650

Students Projected 862 1,130 1,457 1,902 2,397 2,961 3,609 4,276 4,979
Percent Utilization 133% 174% 224% 293% 369% 456% 555% 658% 766%

Student Margin -212 -480 -807 -1,252 -1,747 -2,311 -2,959 -3,626 -4,329

Elementary #24
Practical Capacity 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750

Students Projected 662 688 734 818 895 973 1,056 1,147 1,244
Percent Utilization 88% 92% 98% 109% 119% 130% 141% 153% 166%

Student Margin 88 62 16 -68 -145 -223 -306 -397 -494

Purple 
Track

Yellow 
Track

Purple 
Track

Yellow 
Track

Hubenak 63% 37% 64% 36%

Huggins 100% 0% 100% 0%

Elementary #24 84% 16% 54% 46%

Feeder Patterns

2016 2024

139



 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DEDUCTIVE CHANGE ORDER #1 AND FINAL 
PAYMENT FOR ARREDONDO ELEMENTARY 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the deductive change order #1 in the amount 
of $7,837.08 and final payment of $722,874 to Drymalla Construction for the 
construction of Arredondo Elementary. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Drymalla Construction Company was the contractor for the construction of 
Arredondo Elementary.  Substantial completion was taken on August 10, 2015. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Drymalla Construction Company will be paid 100 percent for the 
construction of Arredondo Elementary. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

   10.B.#10. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

140



141



142



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DEDUCTIVE CHANGE ORDER #1 AND 
PROJECT CLOSEOUT FOR THE TRAYLOR STADIUM RENOVATIONS  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the deductive change order #1 in the amount 
of $50,603 and project closeout to Gamma Construction Company for the 
construction of the Traylor Stadium renovations. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Gamma Construction Company was the contractor for the construction of the 
Traylor Stadium renovations.  Substantial completion was taken in three (3) 
phases Phase 1 & 2 on August 29, 2014 and Phase 3 on August 24, 2015. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Gamma Construction Company will be paid 100 percent for the 
construction of the Traylor Stadium renovations. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 

 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

 10.B.#11. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

143



144



145



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DEDUCTIVE CHANGE ORDER #1 AND FINAL 
PAYMENT FOR THE 2015 SUMMER MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve deductive change order #1 in the amount of 
$108,190.69 and final payment of $56,839.67 to Bass Construction Company for 
the construction of the 2015 miscellaneous summer projects. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Bass Construction Company was the contractor for the construction of the 2015 
miscellaneous summer projects.  Substantial completion was taken on August 
21, 2015. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Bass Construction Company will be paid 100 percent for the 
construction of the 2015 miscellaneous summer projects. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

 

   10.B.#12. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

146



147



148



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FINAL PAYMENT FOR THE SECURITY 

VESTIBULE AT BOWIE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the final payment of $5,000 to Sterling 
Structures for the construction of the security vestibule at Bowie Elementary 
School. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Sterling Structures was the contractor for the construction of the security 
vestibule for Bowie Elementary School.  This project was completed on 
December 14, 2015. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Sterling Structures will be paid 100 percent for the construction of 
the security vestibule at Bowie Elementary School. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 

 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 10.B.#13a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

149



150



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FINAL PAYMENT FOR THE SECURITY 

VESTIBULE AT BRISCOE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the final payment of $5,000 to Sterling 
Structures for the construction of the security vestibule at Briscoe Junior High 
School. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Sterling Structures was the contractor for the construction of the security 
vestibule for Briscoe Junior High School.  This project was completed on 
September 9, 2015. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Sterling Structures will be paid 100 percent for the construction of 
the security vestibule at Briscoe Junior High School. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 

 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

 10.B.#13b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

151



152



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FINAL PAYMENT FOR THE SECURITY 

VESTIBULE AT FOSTER HIGH SCHOOL  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the final payment of $3,087 to Sterling 
Structures for the construction of the security vestibule at Foster High School. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Sterling Structures was the contractor for the construction of the security 
vestibule for Foster High School.  This project was completed on September 9, 
2015. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Sterling Structures will be paid 100 percent for the construction of 
the security vestibule at Foster High School. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

 

10.B.#13c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

153



154



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FINAL PAYMENT FOR THE SECURITY 

VESTIBULE AT GEORGE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the final payment of $22,406.40 to Sterling 
Structures for the construction of the security vestibule at George Junior High 
School. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Sterling Structures was the contractor for the construction of the security 
vestibule for George Junior High School.  This project was completed on 
September 9, 2015. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Sterling Structures will be paid 100 percent for the construction of 
the security vestibule at George Junior High School. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

10.B.#13d. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

155



156



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FINAL PAYMENT FOR THE SECURITY 
VESTIBULE AT LAMAR CONSOLIDATED HIGH SCHOOL  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the final payment of $5,000 to Sterling 
Structures for the construction of the security vestibule at Lamar Consolidated 
High School. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Sterling Structures was the contractor for the construction of the security 
vestibule for Lamar Consolidated High School.  This project was completed on 
September 9, 2015. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Sterling Structures will be paid 100 percent for the construction of 
the security vestibule at Lamar Consolidated High School. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 
 

10.B.#13e. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

157



158



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 
FOR PINK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL REPAIRS 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the design development for Pink Elementary 
School repairs, as presented by PBK Architects. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
PBK Architects will be presenting the design development for Pink Elementary School 
repairs.  The design development booklets will be under separate cover. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
On November 4, 2014, Lamar CISD passed a bond referendem that included the repairs 
of Pink Elementary School.  Upon approval of the design development, the construction 
documents phase will begin. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

10.B.#14. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

159



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF HYDROSTATIC PLUMBING TEST 
FOR PINK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Phil’s Plumbing for the hydrostatic plumbing test 
for Pink Elementary School in the amount of $60,960. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
The hydrostatic plumbing test is recommended by the engineers and must be 
contracted directly.  These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget, Phil’s 
Plumbing is a current vendor for LCISD Bid Reference: RFP 38-2013. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The hydrostatic plumbing test will verify the condition of existing storm and sanitary lines 
under the building to determine if any leaks are contributing to the damages.  These 
tests are crucial in the design and repairs of Pink Elementary School. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 

 10.B.#15. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

160



Estimate
Date

10/8/2015

Estimate #

694

Name / Address

Vanier - Rice & Gardner
6161 Savoy Drive  Suite 1212
Houston, Tx 77036

Job Address/ Workorder

Pink Elementary
1001 Collins Rd.
Richmond, Tx 77469

E-mail

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax  ()

Texas State Board of Plumbing Examiners
929 East 41st. Street

Austin, Texas 78765-4200
512-936-5200

Phil's Plumbing Co. is
insured for your protection

We appreciate the opporunity to submit this estimate. Please call
should you have any questions.

M-17814

Family owned and operated

Fax (979) 793-3252

Office (979) 793-4146

www.philsplumbing-tx.com philsplumbing@consolidated.net

Grudziecki Plumbing Co., Inc.
Phil's Plumbing Co.
9507 Church St.
Needville, Tx 77461

All Plumbing work performed by
Phil's Plumbing Co. will be up to
State and Local Codes

Description Qty Cost Total

Estimated job cost
Sub Contractor cost per hour is $750.00 based on a 8 hour day which includes all of the following. which
breaks down to be 125.00 per hour for each 2 technicians, 2 helpers, and 2 trucks and all necessary
equipment.

6 6,000.00 36,000.00

Hydrostatic test/Isolation test for sewer lines
Hydrostatic test/Isolation of storm drain lines
NOTE: For 10" lines are larger additional charges may apply.
8 hours on Saturday = $6,000.00 per day
It is estimated 6 work days to complete = $36,000.00 (not to exceed $40,000.00)
Estimate will include each day = 2 technicians, 2 helpers, 2 trucks with cameras, locators, blow-up plugs,
all necessary equipment and labor

Phil's Plumbing cost per hour is $520.00  based on a 8 hour day which includes all of the following and
up to 6 days to complete the work. Which breaks down to be 104.00 per hour for each 2- Master
plumbers, 1- Apprentice Plumber, 2- Trucks and all necessary equipment.

It is estimated 6 work days to complete 6 4,160.00 24,960.00
Estimate will include each day for Phils Plumbing to provide 2 Master Plumbers, 1 Apprentice, 2 Trucks,
Labor and replacement clean out plugs only if needed.

Page 1

161



Estimate
Date

10/8/2015

Estimate #

694

Name / Address

Vanier - Rice & Gardner
6161 Savoy Drive  Suite 1212
Houston, Tx 77036

Job Address/ Workorder

Pink Elementary
1001 Collins Rd.
Richmond, Tx 77469

E-mail

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax  ()

Texas State Board of Plumbing Examiners
929 East 41st. Street

Austin, Texas 78765-4200
512-936-5200

Phil's Plumbing Co. is
insured for your protection

We appreciate the opporunity to submit this estimate. Please call
should you have any questions.

M-17814

Family owned and operated

Fax (979) 793-3252

Office (979) 793-4146

www.philsplumbing-tx.com philsplumbing@consolidated.net

Grudziecki Plumbing Co., Inc.
Phil's Plumbing Co.
9507 Church St.
Needville, Tx 77461

All Plumbing work performed by
Phil's Plumbing Co. will be up to
State and Local Codes

Description Qty Cost Total

This test will check the integrity of all under slab sanitary sewer lines and Storm lines. The under slab
sewer and storm system will be electronically tracked and the exit points located. The system will then be
filled with water to slab level and monitored for 1 hour.   A drop in the water level indicates the system
has a leak. If a leak is indicated an isolation test will be performed to determine the exact location of the
leak or leak(s). An exit point cleanout is typically required to perform an isolation test. If a cleanout is
not present, it may be necessary to install a cleanout in order to complete the testing and additional
charges will apply. If a sewer or storm system is determined to be leaking and a leak detection is
performed a report and bid for repairs will be provided along with a drawing with all located leaks
marked. (LL)

This is just a rough estimate and is subject to change more or less depending on what is found when
testing is finished.  At that time a proposal will be made on what it will take to make the necessary
repairs.

Page 2

$60,960.00

$60,960.00

$0.00

162



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 
FOR THE NEW ELEMENTARY #25 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the design development for the new Elementary 
#25, as presented by PBK Architects. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
PBK Architects will be presenting the design development for the new Elementary #25.  
The design development booklets will be under separate cover. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
On November 4, 2014, Lamar CISD passed a bond referendum that included the 
construction of the new Elementary #25.  Upon approval of the design development, the 
construction documents phase will begin. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

 10.B.#16. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

163



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF HVAC TEST AND BALANCE 

FOR THE NEW ELEMENTARY #24 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Engineered Air Balance Co., Inc. for the HVAC 
test and balance service of the new Elementary #24 in the amount of $80,965. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
The HVAC test and balance service is a professional service that the District must 
contract directly.  These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The HVAC test and balance service will generate reports that evaluate the operation of 
the heating, ventilating and air conditioning systems of the new Elementary #24. 
 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

    10.B.#17. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

164



165



 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SUPERINTENDENT PRIORITIES FOR 2016-2017 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the superintendent priorities for 2016-2017. 
 

 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
In October, the Board elected to meet for a Team Building session, but the Board did not 
review District priorities.  The session was led by David Koempel, a consultant with the 
Texas Association of School Boards (TASB). He opened the session by reviewing the 
Board’s obligation to function as a corporate body.  He pointed out the ways in which a 
Board’s failure to function as a corporate body can create inefficiencies in an 
organization, especially with regard to establishing priorities for the administration.  He 
also shared examples of what happens when school districts do not function as a 
corporate body. 
 
The Board annually sets the Superintendent priorities.  The Board can either approve the 
existing priorities for the upcoming school year or make appropriate changes. 
 
 

Priority One:  Continue to make improvements and advancements in the instructional  
    program. 
 

Priority Two:  Continue planning for the financial health of the District, given expected  
     rates of growth and the current economic climate. 
 

Priority Three:  Continue improvements in career and technology education. 
 

Priority Four:  Continue to make improvements to safety and security in the District. 
 

Priority Five:  Continue to develop a coordinated Board-administration outreach/ 
     communication program for the community. 
 
 
The superintendent will develop a set of evaluation goals related to the priorities. 

 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 10.B.#18. - PLANNING 

BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

166



 
 

DISCUSSION OF BOARD OPERATING PROCEDURES 
 
 
 
 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
In effective school systems, the Superintendent and the Board function as a “Team of 
Eight.”  A structured approach to developing a vision for the district and setting goals is 
enhanced by first developing a system of standard operating procedures.  The School 
Board is the corporate policy making body for the district, and the Superintendent and staff 
provide the leadership to cause Board policies to be implemented. 
 
 
 
Resource person:   Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent 
 
 
 

 10.B.#19. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

167



 

Board Operating 
Procedures 

 

 
 
 
 

Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revised 4/24/2013

168



2 
 

Board Operating Procedures 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 

 
 

In effective school systems, the Superintendent and the Board function as a "Team of 

Eight." A structured approach to developing a vision for the district and setting goals is 

enhanced by first developing a system of standard operating procedures. The School Board is 

the corporate policy making body for the district and the Superintendent and staff provide the 

leadership to cause Board policies to be implemented. Therefore, the Lamar CISD Board of 

Trustees and Superintendent function as a "TEAM of Eight" to provide open communication to 

the staff and patrons of the district. 

The Lamar CISD Board of Trustees adopts these guidelines as Standard Operating 

Procedures to effectively communicate with staff and patrons of the district. 

 

 

I. DEVELOPING BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 

A. Placing items on agenda 

 

1. The tentative agenda is created by the administration and presented to the  

     Board President one week before the regular Board meeting. 

 2.   Board members must request through the Board President in advance any   

        item they wish to have considered for placement on the agenda. 

3.  The Board President shall place an item on the agenda if the item is  

  requested by three Board members. 

4.   Future Agenda Items is listed on the agenda of each board meeting and   

 three board members may request that an item be listed for the next meeting. 

5. In accordance with Texas Open Meeting Law, no member can place an item 

on the agenda less than 72 hours in advance of a meeting, except in an 

 emergency as per Texas Code. 
 

B. Items for Executive Session 

 

1.   All personnel issues must be conducted in an executive session, unless    

      specifically required by Texas Open Meeting Law. 

2.  The Board may discuss any and all subjects, for any and all purposes permitted     

      by Sections 551.071-551.084, in executive session. 

 

C.     A consent agenda will be used whenever possible.  The Board President will  

 recommend action items to be placed on the consent agenda.  Action item(s) may  

 be removed from the consent agenda at the request of any board member. 

 

169



3 
 

II. MEMBER CONDUCT DURING BOARD MEETINGS 

(Four members present constitutes a quorum for a meeting.) 

 

A. Persons addressing the Board (Persons have several options of addressing the 

Board on agenda items.) 

 

1. A person may address the Board by completing a form located inside the board 

room prior to Audience to Patron portion of the meeting. Each speaker is limited 

to five minutes. 

2. Delegations of more than five persons shall appoint one person to present their 

views. 

3. The Board will not discuss concerns with individuals at the meeting. 

 

B. Board response to persons addressing the Board 

 

1. The Board President, when necessary, may direct the Superintendent to 

investigate item(s) and report back to the Board. 

 

C. Discussion of individual employees or students by the Board or audience 

 

1. The Board will not entertain negative comments on individual employees in 

public session. 

2. The Board will not entertain negative comments on individual students in public 

session. 

 

D. Hearing and public hearings 

 

1. During public hearings, the Board is assembled only to gather information. 

2. The Board will not answer questions or enter into dialogue, except with their 

attorney, in the case of an employee hearing. 

3. Rules for the public hearing will be strictly adhered to: 

a. The Board will limit  comments to five minutes per testifier; 
b. The Board will accept written (signed) or oral testimony; 
c. The Board will not allow duplicate testimony; and 
d. The Board will not allow any derogatory comments. 

 
 

E. Board shall observe the parliamentary procedures in Robert's Rules of Order 

 

1. All discussion shall be directed solely to the business currently under 

deliberation. 

2. The Board President has the responsibility to keep the discussion pertinent to the 

motion at hand and shall halt discussion that does not apply to the business 

before the Board. 

3.  The Board President has the right to recognize a Board member prior to giving 

their comments. 

170



4 
 

4.  Individual Board topics will be limited to Five (5) minutes discussion from each 

Board member.  The approval of a majority of Board members present is 

required to exceed this time limit.  Extended time limits must be outlined prior to a 

Board vote and any/all additional approval to exceed those limits will require 

approval of a majority of Board members present for each request.  Any Board 

member can request the Board to consider extended discussion periods. 

5.  Board members will raise their hand and be recognized by the presiding officer 

prior to beginning any discussions or motions. The individual member will 

relinquish the floor back to the presiding officer once they have concluded. 

 

 

III. VOTING 

 

A. The Board President has the right to discuss, make motions and resolutions, and  

      vote on all matters coming before the Board. 

B. In case of a tie vote, the item is tabled. The Board President shall bring the item 

back to the Board on a subsequent agenda. 

 

 

IV. INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBER REQUEST FOR INFORMATION OR REPORTS 

 

A. Board members shall request information and/or reports from the Superintendent 

through the Board President.  

 

B. The Superintendent will gather information and/or report and disseminate to the 

Board  in a timely manner.  

 

C. Board members are encouraged to advise the Superintendent of questions or 

concerns on agenda items before the Board meeting. 

 

D. The Superintendent will contact each board member prior to a meeting to clarify any 

questions he/she may have. 

 

 

V. CITIZEN REQUEST/COMPLAINT TO INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBER 

 

A. The Board member should hear the full complaint so that the Board member has full 

understanding of the persons, dates, times, and places involved in the complaint. 

 

1. Repeat the problem to citizen. 

2. Inform the citizen of the chain of command. 

3. Remind the citizen of due process and that the Board member must remain 

impartial in case the situation goes before the Board. 

171



5 
 

B. Refer the citizen to the appropriate person in the chain of command. 

C. The administrators shall communicate with the citizen in a timely manner and follow- 

      up with the Board member. 

 

 

VI. EMPLOYEE REQUEST/COMPLAINT TO INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBER 

 

A. The Board member  should hear the full complaint so that the Board member has a 

full understanding of the employee’s complaint. 

1. Repeat the problem back to employee. 

2. Inform the employee of the chain of command. 

3. Remind the employee of the due process procedure and that the Board member 

must remain impartial in case the situation goes before the Board. 

 

B. Refer the employee to the appropriate person in the chain of command. 

 

C. The Board member must talk with Superintendent within 24 hours, relaying the 

employee’s communication. 

 

D. The employee will hear from the Superintendent in a timely fashion unless the 

employee requests no contact from the Superintendent. 

 

 

VII. BOARD MEMBER VISIT TO SCHOOL CAMPUS 

 

A. Board members are encouraged to attend special events on campuses to represent  

      the Board in support of activities. 

 

B. Board members are not to go into teachers' classrooms or campuses for the purpose  

      of evaluation or investigation. 

 

C. Board members must sign in at the office when visiting campuses. 

 

D. Board members must wear identification tags when visiting schools. 

 

 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS 

 

A. The Superintendent will communicate with all Board members via weekly Board-O-

Grams. 

 

B. The Superintendent will communicate information in a timely fashion to all Board 

members. 

 

C. Requests to the Superintendent from the Board President will be distributed to all 

Board members. 

 

D. Board members will keep the Superintendent informed via telephone calls, faxes, e-

172



6 
 

mail, or personal visits. 

 

E. Board members will communicate with the community through public hearings, 

regular Board meetings, and regular publications. 

 

F. Individual Board members cannot speak in an official capacity outside the board 

room. 

 

 

IX. EVALUATION OF SUPERINTENDENT 

 

A. The Board President will obtain input from all members of the Board on the approved 

indicators on the Superintendent's evaluation. 

 

B. Evaluation of the Superintendent is conducted in executive session. 

 

C. A summative evaluation of the Superintendent will be conducted during the first 

quarter of the calendar year. 

 

 

X. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD 

 

The evaluation of the Board is an assessment of completion of an action plan for 

increased Board effectiveness and working relationship with the Superintendent. 

 

 

XI. CRITERIA AND PROCESS FOR SELECTING BOARD OFFICERS 

 

A. Candidates for the President of the Board, Vice President, and Secretary must have 

at least one year of experience on the Board. 

 

B. Elections are held in May of each year. 

 

 

XII. ROLE AND AUTHORITY OF BOARD MEMBER AND/OR BOARD OFFICERS (Set in 

state statute) 

 

A. No Board officer has authority outside the Board meeting. 

 

B. No Board member can direct employees in regard to performance of duties. 

 

C. The Board President shall: 

 

 1. Preside at all Board meetings; 

 2. Appoint committees; 

 3.   Call special meetings; and 

 4. Sign all legal documents required by law. 

 

  D. The Vice President shall act in capacity of President in the absence of the President. 

173



7 
 

 

E. The Secretary shall: 

1. Keep accurate record of Board meetings; 

2. Call meetings and act in the capacity of the President, in the absence of the 

President and Vice-President; and 

3. Countersign all warrants. 

 

 

XIII. ROLE OF BOARD IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

A. The Board can only discuss those items listed on the executive session agenda and 

as limited by law. 

 

B. The Board must vote in public session. 

 

C. Discussions during executive session must remain confidential. 

 

 

XIV. MEDIA INQUIRIES TO THE BOARD 

 

A. The Board President shall be the official spokesperson for the Board to the 

media/press on issues of media attention.  All Board members who receive calls 

from the media should direct them to the Board President or designee. 

 

 

 

XV. ANONYMOUS PHONE CALLS AND/OR LETTERS 

 

A. The Lamar CISD Board of Trustees encourages input.  However, anonymous calls or 

letters will not receive Board attention, discussion, or response and will not result in 

directives to the administration. Confidentiality is strictly maintained when possible. 

 

 

XVI. REVIEW BOARD OPERATING PROCEDURES 

 

A. Standard Board Operating Procedures may be reviewed and updated at the request 

of the majority of the board.  

 

 

 

174



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ADDITIONAL SECURITY  
CAMERAS AND COMPONENTS 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of security cameras, licenses, 
network drops, servers, storage, and installation and configuration services in the 
amount of $568,736.94 from Micro Integration & Programming Solutions, Inc.  
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Security cameras throughout the District provide valuable information. They are 
frequently used as part of investigations by District staff and Police Officers. The District 
has approximately 900 security cameras with 1,100 lenses. Additional cameras are 
needed at most campuses and facilities to include areas not covered by existing 
cameras. In addition, the Food Service Department requested cameras to cover 
cafeteria cash registers, kitchen area back doors and managers’ offices. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Principals, School Resource Officers, and District-level staff were asked to submit 
requests for additional cameras at campuses and district facilities. Coverage maps were 
then created which showed both existing and requested cameras to provide a visual of 
camera coverage. These maps were then reviewed to ensure proper coverage. 
 
Technology Services worked with the Purchasing Department to ensure a properly 
procured contract. Funds from the Technology and Food Services portions of the 2014 
bond and excess reserves from the Food Service Fund will be used to fund this project.  
Micro Integration offers these products and services through The Cooperative 
Purchasing Network (TCPN). 
 
 
Submitted by: David Jacobson, Chief Technology Information Officer 
    
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

10.C.#1 . – TECHNOLOGY 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

175



presented by: David A Patterson

Micro Integration Tel: 713-785-4596

10801 Hammerly Fax: 713-785-2276

Suite 246

Houston, Texas 77043

TCPN Number R5231 February 10,2016

Campus Count of Requested Location Campus Total Actual number of cameras requested 12186DN 12176-28 2256PM 3255PMIR 1765-LE 2256PMIR
Adolphus Elementary 3 $5,903.50 3 2 1
Alternative Learning Center 2 $5,617.50 3 2 1
Austin Elementary 1 $1,628.50 1 1
Beasley Elementary 5 $10,536.50 7 1 6
Bowie Elementary 0 $6,190.00 4 1 3
Briscoe Junior High 12 $18,163.50 11 5 6
Campbell Elementary 1 $2,167.50 1 1
Dickinson Elementary 1 $2,137.50 1 1
Foster High School 29 $46,345.00 26 2 11 9 4
Frost Elementary 1 $4,027.50 3 3
George Junior High 7 $14,340.50 9 1 1 5 2
George Ranch High School 5 $10,962.00 6 1 4 1 (2 OPT)
Hubenak Elementary 8 $8,337.50 5 2 3
Huggins Elementary 1 $1,288.50 1 1
Hutchison Elementary 1 $1,342.50 1 1
Jackson Elementary 4 $5,077.50 3 1 1 1
Lamar Consolidated High School 7 $24,999.00 14 6 2 6
Lamar Junior High 9 $12,130.00 8 1 5 2
Long Elementary 2 $2,137.50 1 1
McNeill Elementary 4 $7,206.00 4 1 2 1
Meyer Elementary 2 $2,685.00 2 2
Navarro Middle School 8 $12,368.50 9 8 1
Other Transportation $4,048.00 2 1 1
Other Athletic Office $7,052.50 5 1 4
Other Development Center $10,771.00 8 8
Other Annex $10,030.50 7 1 6
Other Powell Point $11,106.00 8 4 4
Pink Elementary 5 $19,572.00 12 2 1 6 3
Ray Elementary 6 $14,985.50 9 1 2 4 2
Seguin Early Childhood Center 2 $4,793.50 3 1 2
Smith Elementary 5 $5,988.50 3 2 1
Special Services $4,367.50 3 2 1
Terry High School 4 $6,165.00 4 1 3
Thomas Elementary 1 $1,342.50 1 1
Travis Elementary 1 $4,800.50 3 1 2
Velasquez Elementary 1 $2,685.00 2 2
Wertheimer Middle School 3 $4,027.50 3 3
Wessendorff Middle School 1 $1,373.50 1 1
Williams Elementary 3 $4,275.00 2 2

199 33 28 95 24 1 18

Sub Total $322,975.50 382 132 112 95 24 1 18

Additional Servers and Storage
For all new cameras including 
Kitchens 109,606.44

Total $432,581.94

176



January 4, 2016

Ver 1.0

Campus Cafeterias Total Total Cameras
Brisco $4,890.00 4
Foster $5,992.50 5
George Jr. $4,650.00 4
George Ranch High $5,992.50 5
Lamar CHS $5,992.50 5
Lamar Jr. $5,992.50 5
Reading $4,890.00 4
Terry High $4,890.00 4

Total $43,290.00 36

TCPN # R5231

Micro Integration Confidential
10801 Hammerly Blvd.

Suite 246
Houston, TX. 77034

177



January 4, 2016

Ver 1.0

CAMPUS CAFETERIAS Total Cameras

Adolphus $3,787.50 3
Arredondo $3,787.50 3
Austin $2,445.00 2
Beasley $2,445.00 2
Bowie $2,445.00 2
Campbell $3,787.50 3
Dickinson $3,787.50 3
Frost $3,787.50 3
Hubenak $3,787.50 3
Huggins $2,445.00 2
Hutchison $3,787.50 3
Jackson $3,787.50 3
Long $2,445.00 2
McNeill $3,787.50 3
Meyer $3,787.50 3
Navarro $2,445.00 2
Pink $3,787.50 3
Polly Ryon $3,787.50 3
Ray $2,445.00 2
Seguin $3,787.50 3
Smith $3,787.50 3
Thomas $3,787.50 3
Travis $3,787.50 3
Velasquez $3,787.50 3
Wertheimer $3,787.50 3
Wessendorff $3,787.50 3
Williams $3,787.50 3

Total $92,865.00 74

TCPN # R5231

Micro Integration Confidential
10801 Hammerly Blvd.

Suite 246
Houston, TX. 77034

178



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  QUARTERLY ACADEMIC UPDATE 
 
 
During the Board/Superintendent team planning session, the Board asked the 
Superintendent to develop a set of key indicators from the District Improvement Plan for 
quarterly reports to the Board.  The purpose of the quarterly report is to keep the focus 
of the Board, the Administration, and the District on student performance.  This 
presentation will focus on the overall activity on the District Improvement Plan and some 
specific initiatives for Accelerated Programs. 
 
 
 
 
Resource Person:   Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent 

11.A.#1. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

179



 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM: 2015 GASTON CAPERTON OPPORTUNITY HONOR ROLL 
 
 

Lamar Consolidated School District Placed on the College Board’s Gaston Caperton 
Opportunity Honor Roll for Expanding Access to College 

 
130 School Districts across the U.S. Are Honored 

 
Lamar Consolidated ISD is one of only 130 school districts in the United States being 
recognized by the College Board’s Gaston Caperton Opportunity Honor Roll for creating 
opportunities for traditionally underrepresented students.  The districts featured on the 
Honor Roll have expanded access to higher education by providing students with 
rigorous academic offerings, innovative college-preparation programs, consistent 
growth in the number of underrepresented students and students from lower-income 
backgrounds participating in AP, taking the SAT and applying to four or more colleges. 
 
To be included on the Gaston Caperton Opportunity Honor Roll, the District needed to: 

 Increase the number of underrepresented students who took the SAT®; 

 Increase the number of underrepresented students who took an AP® course and 
exam; 

 Increase the number of underrepresented students who were on-track for 
college, as demonstrated by scoring 1550+ on the SAT; 

 Increase the number of underrepresented students who scored a 3+ on an AP 
Exam; and 

 Increase the number of underrepresented students who sent their SAT scores to 
at least four colleges. 

 
The Gaston Caperton Opportunity Honor Roll shows how exemplary classroom 
instruction, challenging courses, and daily hard work and practice makes all the 
difference in the lives of students. 

 
 
Resource Persons:   Leslie Haack, Executive Director of Secondary Education 
    Valerie Vogt, Academic Administrator 
    Valerie Anderson, Advanced Academic Studies 

11.A.#2. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

180



 

 
INFORMATION ITEM: FREEZING OF NEW INTRA-DISTRICT/INTER-DISTRICT 
TRANSFER REQUESTS TO BOWIE, HUBENAK, McNEILL, RAY, THOMAS, 

TRAVIS AND WILLIAMS ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 

 
A freeze has been placed for new intra-district/inter-district transfer requests at the 
following schools for the 2016-2017 school year: Bowie, Hubenak, McNeill, Ray, 
Thomas, Travis and Williams elementary schools.  It is noted that the freeze on the 
intra-district/inter-district transfers would not include: (1) Students who are currently 
enrolled in a school via transfer; (2) siblings of students currently enrolled in a 
school via transfer; or (3) children of District employees.  The exception being if the 
elementary level enrollment exceeds the 22-1 average capacity at individual grade 
levels that would require the hiring of additional staff.  Principals would examine the 
number of transfer students. The transfer may have to be rescinded. In these 
cases, the parents would be notified immediately. 
 
 
Resource Person:  Laura Lyons, Executive Director of Elementary Education 

11.A.#3. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

181



 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM: DEMOGRAPHIC UPDATE 
 
 

In order to manage growth effectively, the District employs Population and Survey 
Analysts (PASA) to analyze student trends, projections of housing occupations by 
planning unit, ratios of students per household, District-wide projections and long-range 
planning. PASA has completed the spring update and will provide information to the 
Board. 
 
Dr. Pat Guseman and Dr. Stacey Tepera will present the update and answer questions 
related to the study. 
 
 
 
Resource Person: Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent  

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

   11.B.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

182



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  TAX COLLECTION REPORT 
(AS OF JANUARY 31, 2016) 

 
 
 
Exhibit "A" gives the LCISD collections made during the month of  

January 31, 2016. 
 
Exhibit "B" gives the total LCISD collections made this school year from September 1, 

2015 through August 31, 2016. 
 
Exhibit "C" shows the LCISD collections made month-by-month of the 2015-16 roll as 

compared to prior years.  Through January 31, 2016, LCISD had collected 
83.9 % of the 2015-16 roll. 

 
Exhibit "D" shows the total collections made as compared to the amount that was 

budgeted for 2015-2016. 
 
Exhibit "E" shows the LCISD tax collection analysis for the last six years. 
 
 
 

Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 

11.B.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

183



Exhibit ALamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections
January 2016

 
General Fund Debt Service

Taxes Penalty & Collection Total General Fund P & I & Debt Service P & I &
Year Paid Interest Fees Payments Taxes Paid Collection Fees Taxes Paid Collection Fees

15 62,549,659.21$           -$                           -$                        62,549,659.21$            46,800,310.20$           -$                         15,749,349.01$        -$                            
14 117,146.75$                16,598.23$                 15,808.72$             149,553.70$                 87,650.46$                  28,227.69$              29,496.29$               4,179.26$                   
13 59,293.51$                  4,374.88$                   2,960.66$               66,629.05$                   44,364.06$                  6,234.01$                14,929.45$               1,101.53$                   
12 55,248.33$                  1,976.08$                   1,036.20$               58,260.61$                   41,337.39$                  2,514.68$                13,910.94$               497.60$                      
11 55,582.65$                  1,792.38$                   795.03$                  58,170.06$                   40,787.82$                  2,110.27$                14,794.83$               477.14$                      
10 51,090.52$                  499.59$                      90.32$                    51,680.43$                   38,191.99$                  463.77$                   12,898.53$               126.14$                      
09 33,269.85$                  528.85$                      185.22$                  33,983.92$                   26,173.88$                  618.81$                   7,095.97$                 95.26$                        
08 218.45$                       193.69$                      79.09$                    491.23$                        171.72$                       231.34$                   46.73$                      41.44$                        
07 17.15$                         4.58$                          1.54$                      23.27$                          13.19$                         5.06$                       3.96$                        1.06$                          
06 446.77$                       502.15$                      141.38$                  1,090.30$                     383.94$                       572.93$                   62.83$                      70.60$                        
05 314.36$                       396.66$                      139.82$                  850.84$                        270.62$                       480.97$                   43.74$                      55.51$                        
04 69.61$                         90.22$                        30.57$                    190.40$                        61.50$                         110.29$                   8.11$                        10.50$                        
03 137.00$                       213.71$                      52.61$                    403.32$                        123.46$                       245.20$                   13.54$                      21.12$                        
02 2.33$                           -$                           -$                        2.33$                            2.10$                           -$                         0.23$                        -$                            
01 48.26$                         70.52$                        13.95$                    132.73$                        43.49$                         77.50$                     4.77$                        6.97$                          
00 29.47$                         56.60$                        12.91$                    98.98$                          26.23$                         63.30$                     3.24$                        6.21$                          
99 -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            
98 168.50$                       362.29$                      79.62$                    610.41$                        155.78$                       414.57$                   12.72$                      27.34$                        
97 -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            
96 -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            
95 -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            
94 -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            
93 -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            
92 -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            
91 -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            
90 -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            

89 & prior -$                             -$                           -$                        -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                          -$                            
 

Totals 62,922,742.72$           27,660.43$                 21,427.64$             62,971,830.79$            47,080,067.83$           42,370.39$              15,842,674.89$        6,717.68$                   
     

184



Exhibit BLamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

September 1, 2015-August 31, 2016
(Year-To-Date)

Original Adjusted Taxes Penalty & Collection Total Total Taxes
Year Tax Adjustments Tax Paid Interest Fees Payments 1/31/2016

15 173,016,529.71$             6,665,083.94$        179,681,613.65$            150,665,381.85$              -$                         -$                        150,665,381.85$             29,016,231.80$            
14 1,578,079.69$                 (229,731.76)$          1,348,347.93$                 510,191.59$                      98,741.94$              103,874.05$           712,807.58$                    838,156.34$                 
13 759,119.83$                    (159,201.63)$          599,918.20$                    157,682.17$                      23,529.68$              16,409.84$             197,621.69$                    442,236.03$                 
12 693,023.94$                    (221,154.52)$          471,869.42$                    105,621.58$                      9,949.34$                5,108.06$               120,678.98$                    366,247.84$                 
11 631,556.26$                    (229,153.86)$          402,402.40$                    87,295.15$                        6,309.01$                2,545.31$               96,149.47$                      315,107.25$                 
10 605,391.03$                    (331,029.14)$          274,361.89$                    (4,837.41)$                        3,501.09$                1,072.04$               (264.28)$                          279,199.30$                 
09 581,353.50$                    (335,006.89)$          246,346.61$                    49,662.73$                        3,645.27$                1,405.40$               54,713.40$                      196,683.88$                 
08 587,734.40$                    (411,472.23)$          176,262.17$                    4,283.25$                          3,391.94$                968.35$                  8,643.54$                        171,978.92$                 
07 191,892.59$                    -$                        191,892.59$                    3,273.88$                          2,921.63$                682.02$                  6,877.53$                        188,618.71$                 
06 127,543.57$                    -$                        127,543.57$                    3,648.57$                          3,840.27$                1,189.82$               8,678.66$                        123,895.00$                 
05 142,756.89$                    (243.81)$                 142,513.08$                    1,393.07$                          1,756.48$                624.51$                  3,774.06$                        141,120.01$                 
04 65,622.10$                      (116.63)$                 65,505.47$                      1,128.89$                          1,516.49$                527.66$                  3,173.04$                        64,376.58$                   
03 48,382.85$                      (87.39)$                   48,295.46$                      1,123.18$                          1,696.92$                422.74$                  3,242.84$                        47,172.28$                   
02 32,774.61$                      (5.07)$                     32,769.54$                      2.33$                                 -$                         -$                        2.33$                               32,767.21$                   
01 30,373.59$                      -$                        30,373.59$                      262.24$                             403.11$                   81.92$                    747.27$                           30,111.35$                   
00 26,210.82$                      -$                        26,210.82$                      73.47$                               138.88$                   31.85$                    244.20$                           26,137.35$                   
99 27,765.44$                      -$                        27,765.44$                      -$                                   -$                         -$                        -$                                 27,765.44$                   
98 19,318.70$                      -$                        19,318.70$                      584.76$                             1,249.87$                275.19$                  2,109.82$                        18,733.94$                   
97 17,316.46$                      -$                        17,316.46$                      252.81$                             564.65$                   122.62$                  940.08$                           17,063.65$                   
96 16,372.69$                      (9.38)$                     16,363.31$                      5.62$                                 1.34$                       1.04$                      8.00$                               16,357.69$                   
95 8,069.69$                        -$                        8,069.69$                        215.99$                             540.72$                   113.51$                  870.22$                           7,853.70$                     
94 5,144.31$                        -$                        5,144.31$                        134.92$                             350.65$                   72.83$                    558.40$                           5,009.39$                     
93 2,639.02$                        -$                        2,639.02$                        -$                                   -$                         -$                        -$                                 2,639.02$                     
92 3,823.63$                        -$                        3,823.63$                        -$                                   -$                         -$                        -$                                 3,823.63$                     

91 & prior 11,266.58$                      -$                        11,266.58$                      1,282.34$                          3,888.69$                775.64$                  5,946.67$                        9,984.24$                     
 

Totals $179,230,061.90 4,747,871.63$        $183,977,933.53 151,588,662.98$             $167,937.97 $136,304.40 $151,892,905.35 $32,389,270.55

185



Exhibit C

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TAX COLLECTION ANALYSIS
PERCENT Y-T-D BY MONTH
FOR CURRENT LEVY ONLY

MONTH 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05

SEPT 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

OCT 0.1% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

NOV 3.2% 2.2% 7.4% 1.9% 2.6% 3.9% 1.9% 1.7% 2.8% 2.1% 1.0% 3.3%

DEC 49.0% 45.3% 45.3% 33.1% 30.2% 33.3% 25.9% 35.4% 31.9% 29.7% 32.7% 16.8%

JAN 83.9% 82.0% 86.2% 82.9% 82.3% 84.1% 80.7% 80.4% 59.6% 76.4% 73.6% 74.9%

FEB 95.1% 95.5% 95.5% 94.8% 94.3% 93.3% 92.8% 93.5% 93.3% 92.5% 92.3%

MAR 96.8% 97.0% 96.8% 96.4% 96.1% 95.0% 94.8% 95.1% 94.7% 94.3% 93.8%

APR 97.9% 97.8% 97.6% 97.1% 96.9% 96.0% 95.6% 95.9% 95.8% 95.2% 94.8%

MAY 98.2% 98.2% 98.1% 97.9% 97.6% 96.5% 96.4% 96.7% 96.5% 96.1% 95.5%

JUNE 98.6% 98.7% 98.6% 98.3% 98.2% 97.4% 97.2% 97.4% 97.3% 96.8% 96.4%

JULY 98.9% 99.0% 99.0% 98.7% 98.6% 98.0% 97.9% 98.0% 97.8% 97.4% 97.1%

AUG 99.0% 99.2% 99.1% 98.9% 98.8% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 97.8% 97.5%

186



Exhibit D

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
2015-16 TAX COLLECTIONS
AS OF JANUARY 31, 2016

TAX  YEAR BUDGET COLLECTIONS % OF BUDGET
LCISD TAXES SCHOOL YEAR AMOUNT 1/31/2016 COLLECTED

 
2015 2015-2016 $175,920,949 $150,665,382 85.64%

 
2014 &  Prior 2014-15 & Prior $2,150,000 $923,281 42.94%

TOTAL $178,070,949 $151,588,663 85.13%

187



Exhibit ELAMAR  CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TAX COLLECTION REPORT

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2016

SCHOOL YEAR 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
TAX YEAR 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

COLLECTION YEAR
1 Orig. Levy 129,215,668$        132,226,943$        136,145,655$         142,546,726$         153,118,133$          173,016,530$                 

1 Collections 132,086,020$        136,117,707$        140,561,034$         148,220,912$         160,220,428$          150,665,382$                 
Adj. To Roll     4,579,622$            5,417,190$            5,652,043$             6,929,880$             8,680,375$              6,665,084$                     

2 Collections 1,050,557$            915,762$               739,542$                739,176$                510,192$                
Adj. To Roll 53,764$                 (64,337)$                65,612$                  242,601$                (229,732)$               

3 Collections 329,317$               286,833$               315,459$                157,682$                
Adj. To Roll 13,438$                 162,075$               445,748$                (159,202)$               

4  Collections   199,270$               308,264$               105,622$                
Adj.  To Roll 148,691$               518,252$               (221,155)$               

5 Collections 268,598$               87,295$                 
Adj. To Roll 527,967$               (229,154)$              

6 Collections (4,837)$                  
Adj. To Roll (331,029)$              

TOTAL:
COLLECTIONS 133,928,924$        137,715,862$        141,721,657$         149,117,770$         160,730,619$          150,665,382$                 
ADJUSTED TAX ROLL 134,208,121$        138,030,968$        142,087,904$         149,560,006$         161,568,776$          179,681,614$                 

BALANCE TO
BE COLLECTED 279,198$               315,107$               366,247$                442,236$                838,156$                29,016,232$                   

ADJ. TAXABLE
VALUE 9,835,339,220$     9,929,928,292$     10,221,783,677$    10,759,325,636$    11,623,234,835$     12,926,269,821$            

TOTAL % COLLECTIONS 99.8% 99.8% 99.7% 99.7% 99.5% 83.9%
AS OF JANUARY 31, 2016  

TAX RATE 1.36455 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005

188



INFORMATION ITEM:  PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
 

 
Below is a list of invoices that have been approved for payment. 
 
 
Bass Construction 
(Misc. Renovations 2015)     Application # 8 $      106,168.62 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Fulshear HS)      Application # 19 $   2,178,318.65 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Leaman JHS)      Application # 19 $   1,070,649.05 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Transportation Satellite)     Application # 19 $      389,680.50 
 
Engineered Air Balance 
(Fulshear HS)      Application # 3 $         2,200.00 
 
Engineered Air Balance 
(Fulshear HS)      Application # 4 $        32,775.00 
 
Engineered Air Balance 
(Leaman JHS)      Application # 2 $        14,345.00 
 
Gamma Construction 
(Elementary #24)      Application # 3 $      580,450.00 
 
Gilbane 
(2011 Bond Program)     Application # 45 $      191,580.00 
 
Jones & Carter    
(Elementary #24)        Application # 1 $        21,000.00 
 
LJA Engineering 
(Elementary #25)      Application # 1 $          5,000.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Arredondo Elementary)       Application # 12 $             663.78 
 
PBK Architects    
(Elementary #24)        Application # 2 $          4,449.94 
 
 

 11.B.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

189



PBK Architects    
(Elementary #24)        Application # 3 $          8,899.87 
 
PBK Architects    
(Elementary #25)        Application # 1 $        42,959.39 
 
PBK Architects    
(Fulshear HS)        Application # 14 $        61,154.61 
 
PBK Architects    
(Leaman JHS)        Application # 12 $        32,745.53 
 
PBK Architects    
(Transportation Satellite)       Application # 5 $          4,976.11 
 
Terracon   
(Elementary #24)      Application # 1 $          2,565.00 
 
Terracon   
(Elementary #24)      Application # 2 $          5,456.00 
 
Terracon   
(Transportation Satellite)     Application # 5 $          2,101.00 
 
Terracon   
(Transportation Satellite)     Application # 6 $             267.50 
 
Vanir, Rice & Gardner  
(2014 Bond Program)     Application # 7 $      207,561.00 
 
 
 
Resource person: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

190



 
INFORMATION ITEM:  REGION 4 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS UPDATE 

 
This agenda item will be on the Board Agenda each month to provide updates on 
Region 4’s progress with Maintenance and Operations. The following indicate actions 
that have taken place since the last regular board meeting. 
 
Work Request Summary for January, 2016: 
 

 The Department completed 997 requests 

 The Department received 102 requests for the month   
 
Maintenance: 
 
The Maintenance Department assisted by: 
 

 Unclogging the sanitary sewer back up in the 3rd grade pod at Adolphus 
Elementary 

 Replacing a leaking toilet drain gasket in the girls restroom at Jackson 
Elementary 

 Replacing a faulty circuit breaker on a classroom heater at Thomas Elementary 

 Responding to a call about smoke coming from a light fixture in the auditorium 
hallway at George Ranch High 

 Repairing stage lighting at Wessendorff Middle 

 Reprogramming the intercom bell system at the Alternative Learning Center 

 Reprogramming and replacing the intercom on the call system at Foster High 

 Replacing the fire alarm system detector device at Beasley Elementary 

 Replacing the fire alarm system detector device at Pink Elementary 

 Replacing the fire alarm system detector device at Wertheimer Middle 

 Hanging a paper towel dispenser in the girls restroom at Dickinson Elementary 

 Installing a new access panel to the motor of the snack machine overhead gate 
in the cafeteria at Lamar Consolidated High 

 Repairing an office chair at Brazos Crossing 

 Installing batteries in an exit light in a portable building at Hubenak Elementary 

 Hanging Memorial Hermann banners at the Terry practice pool, LCISD 
Natatorium, and Lamar Junior High 

 Installing a retrofit kit in a large cylinder light fixture in the hallway at George 
Ranch High 

 Repairing the stairway across from the front office at George Ranch High 

 Repairing a closet bar in a classroom at Smith Elementary 

 Lowering desks in a classroom at Smith Elementary 

 Removing stalls in the boys restroom for plumbing repairs at Williams Elementary  

 Installing mini blinds in an office at Brazos Crossing 

 Responding to a natural gas smell at the playground at Hubenak Elementary  

 Unclogging a sanitary sewer back up at Lamar Consolidated High 

 Responding to a fire department call at the Alternative Learning Center 

   11.B.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

191



 Replacing the classroom sensor light switch at Terry High 

 Replacing the broken clock in a classroom at Lamar Consolidated High 

 Replacing the gym score board controller components at Foster High 

 Reprogramming the intercom bell system at Navarro Middle 

 Repairing the intercom system at Campbell Elementary 

 Replacing a vandalized panic bar chassis at Terry High 

 Replacing vandalized window glass at Pink Elementary 

 Mounting a pencil sharpener to a classroom wall at Lamar Consolidated High 

 Hanging banners in the gyms at Reading Junior High 

 Replacing ceiling tiles in an office at Brazos Crossing 

 Cleaning a dryer lint trap filter in a classroom at Lamar Consolidated High 

 Hanging cork board in a hallway at Lamar Consolidated High 

 Replacing tiles in a classroom at Meyer Elementary 

 Installing door stops in the computer lab at Jackson Elementary 

 Installing a soap dispenser in the staff restroom at Campbell Elementary 

 Repainting the back board green on tennis courts at the Briscoe Junior High 

 Replacing ceiling tiles in the boys restroom at Lamar Junior High 

 Adding silicon around the doors in the library at the George Ranch High 

 Cleaning the wood shop dust collector hopper and barrel at Reading Junior High 
 Cleaning the dryer lint trap filters throughout the school at Foster High 

 
Energy Management 
 
Energy assisted by: 
 

 Assisting food service with alarm notifications on coolers and freezers 

 Installing the new louver on the spectator unit at the LCISD Natatorium 

 Beginning the installation of heat exchangers on the boilers at George Ranch 
High and Reading Junior High 

 Meeting with a contractor regarding the bidding on the HVAC contract 

 Meeting with a contractor in regards to the installation of a chiller at Campbell 
Elementary 

 Re-working the phone tree list for call-outs by location after-hours 

 Installing the new design for the spectator unit at the LCISD Natatorium 

 Beginning to test the spectator unit for correct operation at the LCISD Natatorium 

 Participating in the webinar for teaching a class at the TASBO Conference  

 Installing a temporary boiler at Reading Junior High 

 Working on pricing with the control company for the installation of cooler alarms 
for food service 

 Preparing to release the bid package for the districts HVAC service agreement 
 
Custodial, Integrated Pest Control and Lawn Works: 
 
Custodial, Integrated Pest Control and Lawn Works assisted by: 
 

192



 Extracting carpets in various classrooms throughout the school at Campbell 
Elementary 

 Setting up for a Cub Scout event in the cafeteria at Velasquez Elementary 

 Cleaning and stocking restrooms for a soccer game at Traylor Stadium 

 Setting up for a church event at Hubenak Elementary 

 Setting up and cleaning after a basketball game at George Junior High 

 Scrubbing the field house training room and main corridor at Terry High 

 Setting up tables and chairs for a basketball game and cleaning after at Lamar 
Consolidated High 

 Cleaning the library after parenting classes at Travis Elementary 

 Cleaning throughout the school after basketball games at Foster High 

 Cleaning after the construction on the sewer lines at Williams Elementary 

 Extracting carpets in the 4th and 5th grade areas at Campbell Elementary 

 Cleaning after the Boy Scouts event at McNeill Elementary 

 Cleaning the gyms after volleyball games at Briscoe Junior High 

 Deep cleaning at Wertheimer Middle 

 Cleaning the gyms after volleyball games at Foster High 

 Extracting carpets throughout the school at Pink Elementary 

 Cleaning after the swim meet at LCISD Natatorium 

 Setting up and cleaning after basketball games at Navarro Middle 

 Cleaning the gyms after a wrestling match at Foster High 

 Extracting carpets in the hallway at Foster High 

 Setting up and cleaning after the board meeting at Brazos Crossing 

 Extracting carpets in the 3rd and 4th grade pods at Arredondo Elementary 

 Cleaning after a musical performance at George Ranch High 

 Setting up and cleaning after a church event at Hubenak Elementary 

 Setting up tables and chairs for a region band event in the auditorium at Lamar 
Consolidated High 

 Cleaning the cafeteria after a Girl Scouts event at Dickinson Elementary 

 Mopping water and extracting carpets due to water leak at Briscoe Junior High 

 Extracting carpets throughout the school at Dickinson Elementary 

 Mowing at all elementary campuses 

 Mowing at all the high school blocks 

 Mowing the athletic fields at all high schools 

 Removing scrap metal from Terry High 

 Picking up tables from Smith Elementary, Velasquez Elementary, and Hubenak 
Elementary 

 Repairing the fence at Seguin Early Childhood Center 

 Installing stop signs at Foster High and Hubenak Elementary 

 Spreading kiddie cushion on the playground at Dickinson Elementary 

 Delivering tables to Jackson Elementary 

 Delivering sand to Williams Elementary and Foster High 

 Removing the gazebo from Williams Elementary 

 Removing and opening the time capsule at Austin Elementary 

 Delivering the forklift to Band Road Warehouse 

193



 Spreading sand on the baseball and football fields at Foster High 

 Spreading mulch at Campbell Elementary and Velasquez Elementary 

 Painting at all of the baseball, soccer, and softball fields 

 Delivering tables to Velasquez Elementary, Smith Elementary, and Austin 
Elementary 

 Setting up handicap posts in the parking lot at George Junior High 
 Clearing the parking lot of dirt at the Special Needs Center 

 Removing a toy from the playground at McNeill Elementary 

 Spreading mulch at Bowie Elementary 

 Repairing the fence at Jackson Elementary 

 Delivering tables and chairs to Frost Elementary, Terry High, and Travis 
Elementary 

 Picking up the stage for the parade from George Ranch High 

 Trimming trees at Meyer Elementary 

 Replacing a drain at Beasley Elementary 

 Moving wrestling mats at various campuses District-wide 

 Providing rodent control at various schools throughout the District 

 Applying ant control at Navarro Middle 

 Applying ant control at Thomas Elementary 

 Providing ant control at George Junior High 

 Providing services with The Bug Man Pest Control District-wide 

 Applying ant control at Hubenak Elementary 

 Applying ant control at Lamar Junior High 
 

Resources: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
Aaron Morgan, Director of Maintenance & Operations (Region 4) 

  Hector Gomez, Assistant Director of Operations 
  James Carrillo, Assistant Director (Region 4)   

194



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             February 2016 

  

 Page 1 

  

 
Monthly Report 

2011 Bond Program 
  

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

  

 

EXECUTIVE REPORT 

 BUDGET  COMMITTED  UNCOMMITTED  PAID 

NEW FACILITIES 195,237,324.00  23,510,056.19  17,357,650.21  154,369,617.60 

EXISTING FACILITIES 23,734,459.00  469,039.32  4,628,617.94  18,636,801.76 

LAND 2,918,653.00  1,600.00  294.19  2,916,758.81 

TRANSPORTATION 6,100,779.00  -  836,905.00  5,263,874.00 

TECHNOLOGY 21,168,000.00  17,763.29  2,536,421.63  3,951,362.55 

MISCELLANEOUS -  -  -  - 

        

TOTAL 249,159,215.00  23,998,458.80  25,359,888.97  185,138,414.72 

 

          

   11.B.#5a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

195



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             February 2016 

  

 Page 2 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Churchill Fulshear (Jr.) HS is part of 

a new 101 acre campus in Fulshear, 

TX.  It includes a 350,000 sf main 

building, 32,400 sf field house, 

teacher and student parking, separate 

bus drop-off, dual gymnasiums, 

dedicated CTE spaces, competition 

and practice ball fields, tennis courts, 

and band practice areas. 

 

Current 2011 Bond Program Projects: 
 

Churchill Fulshear (Jr.) HS, & sitework:  
(Refer to Design Development booklet for floor plans) 

  

Project meetings with PBK, Drymalla, Gilbane, and LCISD are continuing on a bi-

weekly basis. 

  

 The main canopy entrance framing and decking is complete.  

 The main entrance concrete is ongoing. 

 Commons area floor tile is complete.  Ceiling grid and ceiling tile is 

complete. 

 Kitchen appliances have been delivered and are currently being 

installed. 

 All casework is onsite and being installed throughout. 

 Auditorium scaffolding is completely removed and ceiling is installed 

complete with finish paint. 

 The building is dried in and the building air is conditioned.  The 

relative humidity and air temperature is in range for all finishes. 

 Approximately 95% of the site paving is complete. 

 Ductwork is being installed and insulated in the athletics and 

gymnasium areas. 

 Ceiling grid is nearly complete and the ceiling tile is currently being 

installed.  Lighting fixtures near complete throughout the building and 

ongoing. 

 Finish paint is ongoing and spirit colors in the main gym are being 

applied. 

 VCT is onsite, precon meeting was held 1/5/16 and Drymalla has 

released them pending mock up approval. 

 Fire alarm wiring and speaker wire is ongoing. 

 All fire pipe and heads are roughly 95% complete. 

 Installation of Hollow Metal Doors is ongoing. 

 Site sidewalks are ongoing. 

 The tennis courts have been poured out and fencing, post erection is 

ongoing. 

 Track has been filled and tested and asphalt is complete. 

 The dormers have been set on the roof tops. 

 Site irrigation is ongoing. 

 Athletic Field post and miscellaneous steel is being erected and 

ongoing. 

 Ball field chain link fencing is ongoing. 

 

 

 

 

196



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             February 2016 

  

 Page 3 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Dean Leaman JHS is part of a new 

101 acre campus in Fulshear, TX.  It 

includes a 203,000 sf building, teacher 

and visitor parking, separate bus 

drop-off, competition ajd practice ball 

fields, dual gymnasiums, and 

dedicated CTE spaces. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Churchill Fulshear (Jr.) HS, & sitework (cont.): 

 
 
Fieldhouse 

 The Field House exterior sheathing is complete. 

 Plumbing overhead is ongoing. 

 Standing seam roof panels are complete. 

 MEP rough is ongoing and near completion.  Mechanical piping is 

awaiting insulation. 

 CMU walls are installed and awaiting primer and finish paint. 

 

 

 

Dean Leaman JHS 
 

 

 Floor tile in the cafeteria is ongoing.  Fur downs, lighting fixtures, and 

ceiling tile is installed. 

 Ceiling grid, lighting fixtures, and finish painting ongoing down Main 

Street. 

 Finish painting is ongoing in the athletic areas. 

 Case work is being installed throughout. 

 Gymnasium goalpost and goals are installed. 

 Ceiling grid, light fixtures, and painting are ongoing throughout areas 

D, E, and F. 

 The building is dried in and relative humidity and temperature is in 

range for all finishes. 

 Ceiling grid is installed throughout areas E & D. 

 Window frames and glass are installed areas A, B, and C. 

 Low voltage cable is being installed in areas E & F. 

 Main canopy entrance is being erected and ongoing. 

 Gyp board fur down framing is complete and rock is painted in the 

cafeteria. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

197



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             February 2016 

  

 Page 4 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Satellite Transportation Center Phase II:  
 

 The metal building addition framing and wall panels are complete. 

 Site paving is complete. 

 Installation of heaters and fans is ongoing. 

 Bus canopy columns and canopies are complete. 

 Bus canopy striping is near completion. 

 The Bus Wash is ready for punch list and owner demonstration and 

training is complete. 

 Bus Wash Certificate of Occupancy has been issued. 

 

 
Miscellaneous Renovations (2015) to Campbell ES, Frost ES, Pink ES, 

Meyer ES, Dickinson ES, Williams ES, Smith ES, Navarro MS, 

Wessendorff MS, & Seguin Early Childhood Center:  

 

 Project renovations have been completed and are in the closeout and 

warranty phases. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

198



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             February 2016 

  

 Page 5 

  

 
 

 

Adolphus Elementary 

 

 
Ag Barn renovations 

 

 
George Ranch HS Shell Build-Out 

 

 
Polly Ryon Middle School 

 

 
Traylor Stadium Track & Turf 

 

2011 Bond Closed Projects: 

 
Adolphus Elementary   
New 90,700 sf elementary school located in Longmeadow Farms Subdivision 

in Richmond, TX.  The campus includes 42 classrooms with Promethean 

boards, gymnasium with stage, music room, library, play areas, teacher and 

visitor parking, and separate bus drop off areas.   

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $968,368.51  

  

 

Agricultural Barn Renovations  
The renovation included adding a new 10’ canopy around ¾ of the building, 

added ventilation fans, new men and women restroom facilities, an interior 

storage room, grading and drainage work around the building perimeter, new 

electronic gate software, additional security cameras, and new tarps for all of 

the animal pens. 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $59,322.73 
  

 

 

George Ranch High School Build-Out  
The project included the build-out of 14 standard classrooms and 4 science 

labs inside the existing high school building.   

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $1,000,871.28 
  

 

Polly Ryon Middle School  
The project included a new 80,000 sf middle school campus located on the 

existing George Ranch HS complex in Richmond, TX.  The facility includes 

22 classrooms with SMART board technology, a cafeteria with performance 

stage, library, 5 science labs, dedicated fine arts rooms, visitor and staff 

parking, and separate bus drop off areas.   

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $1,083,368.69 
  

Traylor Stadium Track & Turf  

The project included the replacement of the turf and subgrade for the 

competition football field, as well as installation of a new track surface. 
Uncommitted funds as of September1, 2015: $0.00 
  

District Competition Natatorium 
 

The District Natatorium is a new 36,000 sf competition swimming facility 

with an eight lane heated pool, diving well, weight room, classrooms, offices, 

spectator seating and judges stands. The complex is located adjacent to 

Traylor Stadium in Rosenberg, TX. 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $495,714.05 

199



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             February 2016 

  

 Page 6 

  

 
BF Terry High School 

 

 

 
George Junior High School 

 

 
Lamar High School 

 

 
Bowie Elementary School 

 

 
Jackson Elementary School 

 

 

 

 

Miscellaneous Renovations (2013) to Terry HS, Lamar HS,  

George JHS, Jackson ES & Bowie ES 
 

 

Terry High School (Rosenberg, TX): Renovations included a 6,200 sf addition 

for 2 art rooms and 1 standard classroom; remodel of the CTE areas to include 

to new PLTW classrooms and shop area; remodel of the existing wood shop to 

include new storage, exterior doors and an added classroom; remodel of the 

existing Ag shop and classroom to include new welding stations and integrated 

oxygen/acetylene manifold system and a new canopy and graphics at the 

campus main entry.  All classrooms received new marker boards and 

homeland security locksets.   Additional project upgrades included resurfacing 

the existing tennis courts. 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $600,993.12 
  

  

George Junior High School (Rosenberg, TX): Renovations included new paint 

and graphics in both gyms and floor resurfacing in the competition gym; 

chilled water piping was replaced throughout the school; remodel of the 

existing Ag shop, storage and office areas; additional security cameras were 

added and homeland security locksets were added to all classrooms. 

Additional project upgrades included floor resurfacing and repair in the 

competition gymnasium. 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $423,579.04 

 

Lamar High School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations to the CTE areas of the 

school included relocation of exhaust systems in the existing auto-tech shop; 

outfitting of lifts and exhaust for a future auto-tech shop expansion; repair and 

painting of the exterior yard vehicle canopy and fenced enclosure; new 

electronic gate for vehicle storage area; new exhaust hood system in the Ag 

shop and installation of an integrated oxygen/acetylene manifold system. 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $13,575.35 
  

 

Bowie Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations included 

replacement or modification of existing classroom casework; new classroom 

doors; a new sidewalk from the school to Ruby Street; ceiling tile 

replacement; grading and drainage work and all classrooms received homeland 

security locksets. 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $184,453.45 
  

 

Jackson Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations included a 470 sf 

kitchen addition with an office, laundry and restrooms; all flooring was 

replaced in the hallways with ceramic or vinyl tile; an additional canopy was 

installed outside the gymnasium; restrooms were renovated to remove trough 

urinals; various HVAC equipment was replaced; library doors were replaced 

and all classrooms received homeland security locksets. Additional project 

upgrades included new HVAC controls for the entire school. 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $658,591.95 

200



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             February 2016 

  

 Page 7 

  

 

 
Alternative Learning Center 

 

 
Austin Elementary School 

 

 
Foster High School 

 

 
Lamar High School 

 

 
Travis Elementary School 

 

 

Miscellaneous Renovations (2014) to Alternative Learning Center, 

Austin ES, Beasley ES, Foster HS, Lamar JHS, Lamar HS, Taylor Ray 

ES & Travis ES, -- Closeout of the project is expected in January, 2015.  

 
Alternative Learning Center(Rosenberg, TX): The project included a 2,770 sf 

addition for administrative offices, inspection, security and a clinic, as well as 

renovations to existing student restrooms, conversion of old offices to 

computer lab and conference areas, and ventilation, exhaust and new wood 

storage for the Ag shop.   

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $20,652.00 
  

Austin Elementary School (Richmond, TX): The project included replacement 

of all air handlers; remodel of life skills storage area into a restroom; enclosure 

of existing mop sinks in mechanical rooms and removal/replacement of 

sidewalks around the perimeter of the building to address drainage issues.  

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $131,466.50 
  

Foster High School (Richmond, TX):  Renovations to the Ag shop included 

additional welding stations with exhaust hoods, a new exterior canopy, 

covered material storage areas and installation of an integrated oxygen/ 

acetylene manifold system. 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $59,641.00 
  

Lamar High School (Rosenberg, TX):  This project included replacement of 

two existing cooling towers at the Central plant serving the high school and 

junior high, as well as replacement of the boiler in the Lamar HS Fieldhouse.   

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $13,575.35 
  

Travis Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  The project included a new 

parent drop-off drive and canopy along Avenue K; a new staff parking lot at 

the rear of the school; boiler replacement and tie in of a chilled water loop for 

the HVAC system.   

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $29,923.47 

  
Beasley Elementary School (Beasley, TX):  The project included the 

replacement of all air handlers in the building that had reached the end of their 

life cycle.  (no photo) 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $18,379.72 
  
Lamar Junior High School (Rosenberg, TX):  The project included 

replacement of two boilers that had reached the end of their life cycle.  (no 

photo) 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $19,602.13 
  

 

Taylor Ray Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations consisted of the 

replacement of student restroom exhaust fans that had reached the end of their 

life cycle.  (no photo) 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $16,764.57  

 

201



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             February 2016 

  

 Page 8 

  

 

 

 

 
Arredondo Elementary School 

 

 
Traylor Stadium 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Arredondo Elementary School (Richmond TX):  A new 12 acre campus 

consisting of an 90,700 sf building, parking and play areas located in Summer 

Park subdivision in Richmond, TX 

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $1,683,962.16 

 

The Traylor Stadium:  This project included demolition of existing concession 

and restroom facilities, as well as the construction of a new long jump area and 

3 new restroom/concession and ticket booth buildings to serve the stadium.  

New fencing was installed and parking was reconfigured and striped.    

Uncommitted funds as of January 1, 2016: $471,128.17 

 
   

 

202



203



FM 1093 / Westpark Toll Road

J. Meyer Rd.

FM
 762

FM 762

FM
 7

23

FM 1093

FM 359

FM
 359

FM
 3

59

FM 2759

99

59

59

36

90A
90A

90A

90A

36

Brazos River

36

Spur 529 to HWY 59

Ave. J

Ave. M

FM 1640
Ave. K

Ave. F

W
ar

d

FM
 2

21
8

FM
 2

21
8

DYer

Brooks

Mons Ave.
Airport Ave.

G
ra

eb
er

 R
d.

Reinhard St.

Wilburn St.

Islieb
 Rd

.

Ba
m

o
re

 R
d.

10 mi.
59 FrontaGe Road

Southwest Freeway

To Houston

FM
 2

97
7 

/ 
M

in
o

n
it

e 
R

d
.

B
er

d
et

t 
R

d
. 

C
rab

b
 R

iver Rd. 

SansburY
Riverbrook D

r.

G
reatw

o
o

d
   Pkwy.

M
ac

ek
 R

d. M
ac

ek
 R

d.

Ra
b

b
s 

C
ro

ss
. R

d.

Sh
ad

ow

 Bend Dr.

W
 W

in
di

ng
 B

ro
ok Dr.                 E W

inding Brook D
r.

W
il

li
am

s 
W

ay
 B

lv
d. 

R
an

so
m

 R
d

.

Ran
som

 Rd.

FM
 762

Ave. I

Ave. H

Je
an

et
ta

C
o

le
 A

ve
.

La
n

e 
D

ri
ve

Lam
ar D

rive

H
erndon

D
am

o
n

 S
t.

Ave. N
Ave. N

Lo
ui

se

Reading Rd. 

Ricefield Rd.

Maiden Lane

C
o

lli
n

s 
R

d
. 

M
ab

el
 S

t. 

Jackson St. / Ave. H
Underpass

Jackson Street

Liberty Street

Main Street

9t
h 

St
.

9t
h 

St
.

Brazos River

B
ra

zo
s 

R
iv

er

G
ra

nd
 P

ar
kw

ay

Ave. D

Ave. A

3r
d 

St
re

et

H
ou

st
on

 S
tr

ee
t

Thom
pson Rd.

16 mi 
@Fulshear

Katy - Fulshear Rd.

Pi
tt

s 
Rd

.

Rad
io Lan

e

H
or

ac
e 

M
an

n

8th St.

Fort Street

Austin Street

Mustang Ave.

Bellaire Blvd. 99

1

43

2

3 41

42

4

5

6

7

8

10

9

11

12

15

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

2938

35

30

31

32

33

34

36

A
D

B

C

M
ason Rd.

Rancho  Bella Pkwy 

21

Lakemont Bend LN.

Farm
er R

d
.

  Skinner Lane
Plantation Drive

Juvenile 
Detention 

Center

Terry Stadium 
& Field House

Traylor 
Stadium

& Natatorium

To Kendleto
n

Foster HS

George Ranch HS 

Lamar Consolidated HS

Terry HS

Briscoe JH

George JH

Lamar JH

Reading JH 

Navarro MS

Ryon MS

Wertheimer MS

Wessendorff MS

Adolphus ES

Austin ES

Beasley ES

Bowie ES

Campbell ES

Dickinson ES

Frost ES

Hubenak ES

Huggins ES

Hutchison ES

Jackson ES

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

12

19

20

27

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24

25

26

28

29

30

31

A

B

C

D

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

Long ES

McNeill ES

Meyer ES

Pink ES

Ray ES

Smith ES

Thomas ES

Travis ES

Velasquez ES

Williams ES

Seguin Early Childhood Center

Alternative Learning Center

Special Needs Center

1621 Place

Fort Bend Alternative School

Development Center

Powell Point

Administrative Annex

Satelite Transportation Center/ 
Site for Secondary Complex #5

Fort Bend County Fairgrounds

George Memorial Public Library

Oak Bend Medical Center

Rosenberg Civic Center

39

40

41

42

Golfview Dr.

Site for secondary Complex #5

13

W
es

t 
 B

el
lfo

rd

Foster HS

George Ranch HS 

Lamar Consolidated HS

Terry HS

Briscoe JH

George JH

Lamar JH

Reading JH 

Navarro MS

Wertheimer MS

Wessendorff MS

Austin ES

Beasley ES

Bowie ES

Campbell ES

Dickinson ES

Frost ES

Hubenak ES

Huggins ES

Hutchison ES

Jackson ES

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

12

19

20

27

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24

25

26

28

29

30

31

A

B

C

D

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

Long ES

McNeill ES

Meyer ES

Pink ES

Ray ES

Smith ES

Thomas ES

Travis ES

Velasquez ES

Williams ES

Seguin Early Childhood Center

Alternative Learning Center

Special Needs Center

1621 Place

Fort Bend Alternative School

Development Center

Powell Point

Administrative Annex

Satelite Transportation Center/ 
Site for Secondary Complex #5

Site for Elementary #22

Site for Polly Ryon Middle School 

Fort Bend County Fairgrounds

George Memorial Public Library

Oak Bend Medical Center

Rosenberg Civic Center

39

40

41

42

39

Houston Street

14

12

44

Maintenance
Central Warehouse

45
40

37

HIGH SCHOOLS
  1 Foster High School  832-223-3800
  2 George Ranch High School 832-223-4200
  3 Lamar Consolidated High School 832-223-3000
  4 Terry High School  832-223-3400

JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOLS
  5 Briscoe Junior High  832-223-4000
  6 George Junior High  832-223-3600
  7 Lamar Consolidated Junior High 832-223-3200
  8 Reading Junior High  832-223-4400

MIDDLE SCHOOLS
  9 Navarro Middle  832-223-3700
10 Ryon Middle   832-223-4500
11 Wertheimer Middle  832-223-4100
12 Wessendorff Middle  832-223-3300

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS
13 Adolphus Elementary  832-223-4700
14 Arredondo Elementary  832-223-4800
15 Austin Elementary  832-223-1000
16 Beasley Elementary  832-223-1100
17 Bowie Elementary  832-223-1200
18 Campbell Elementary  832-223-1300
19 Dickinson Elementary  832-223-1400
20 Frost Elementary  832-223-1500
21 Hubenak Elementary  832-223-2900
22 Huggins Elementary  832-223-1600
23 Hutchison Elementary  832-223-1700
24 Jackson Elementary  832-223-1800
25 Long Elementary  832-223-1900
26 McNeil Elementary  832-223-2800
27 Meyer Elementary  832-223-2000
28 Pink Elementary  832-223-2100
29 Ray Elementary   832-223-2400
30 Smith Elementary  832-223-2300
31 Thomas Elementary  832-223-4600
32 Travis Elementary  832-223-2500
33 Velasquez Elementary  832-223-2600
34 Williams Elementary  832-223-2700

DISTRICT FACILITIES/SPECIAL SITES
35 Seguin ECC   832-223-2200
36 1621 Place   832-223-0950
37 Administrative Annex  832-223-0000
38 Alternative Learning Center        832-223-0900
39 Brazos Crossing Admin Building 832-223-0000
40 Common Threads  832-223-0342
41 Development Center  832-223-0000
42 Fort Bend Alternative School 281-239-3431 
43 Fulshear Transportation Center 832-223-0551 
44 Rosenberg Transportation Center 832-223-0289
45 Special Needs Center  832-223-0960

District Map and Directory 
www.lcisd.org

Lamar Junior High

204



  

 

Monthly Report 
January 2016 

 

 

 

 

 Page 1 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Bond Sale 1 Current Budget Committed  Uncommitted Actuals Paid 

Elementary 24 22,010,055.00 19,697,935.00 2,312,120.00 1,681,258.96 

Elementary 25 23,770,861.00 1,532,445.00 22,238,416.00 285,000.00 

Elementary 26 24,959,404.00 1,002,386.00 23,957,018.00 0.00 

FHS Baseball 40,000.00 1,800.00 38,200.00 0.00 

FHS Water Plant 990,000.00 48,000.00 942,000.00 20,000.00 

HVAC Web Controls 1,056,000.00 54,000.00 1,002,000.00 0.00 

LCHS Band Hall 700,000.00 30,000.00 670,000.00 15,000.00 

Pink Elementary- Foundation 1,056,000.00 108,000.00 948,000.00 48,000.00 

Practice Pool - Foster High School 8,855,872.00 491,598.00 8,364,274.00 0.00 

Practice Pool - Fulshear High School 8,855,872.00 491,598.00 8,364,274.00 0.00 

Practice Pool - George Ranch High School 8,855,872.00 491,598.00 8,364,274.00 0.00 

Support Services Center 12,146,000.00 570,240.00 11,575,760.00 367,363.00 

THS Band Hall 700,000.00 30,000.00 670,000.00 15,000.00 

THS Baseball 975,000.00 48,000.00 927,000.00 0.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 1 114,970,936.00 24,597,600.00 90,373,336.00 2,431,621.96 

Bond Sale 2         

Elementary 27 24,959,404.00 0.00 24,959,404.00 0.00 

Elementary 28 26,207,374.00 0.00 26,207,374.00 0.00 

Fulshear 6th Grade School 22,342,493.00 0.00 22,342,493.00 0.00 

Fulshear Shell 3,849,077.00 0.00 3,849,077.00 0.00 

Satellite Ag Barn 3,786,750.00 0.00 3,786,750.00 0.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 2 81,145,098.00 0.00 81,145,098.00 0.00 

Grand Total 196,116,034.00 24,597,600.00 171,518,434.00 2,431,621.96 

 
PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Vanir | Rice & Gardner are the Program Managers for the 2014 Bond Program on behalf of 
Lamar CISD. In that role, we provide the direct leadership for managing individual projects, 
through Architects, Engineers and Contractors. We are the liaisons between Lamar Board of 
Trustees, Administration, Departments and Schools to coordinate all activities to ensure 
successful completion of individual projects. 
 
Accomplishments This Month 
 

 Issued Request for Qualifications for Architects & Engineers  
o New Elementary Schools & New Middle School 
o Foster HS Water Plant & HVAC Controls 

 Kicked – Off New Bond Projects with Architects  
o Practice Pools at George Ranch HS, Foster HS & Fulshear HS 
o New Elementary #25  
o Satellite Ag Barn #3 
o Terry HS Baseball Complex 
o Support Services Facility 
o Pink Elementary Repairs 

 Forming Building Committees for New Bond Projects 

 

 

   11.B.#5b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

205



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 2 

 
 

ELEMENTARY 24 

 

 

 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: October 16, 2015 

 Contract Completion: November 18, 2016 

 

 

OVERVIEW 

 The building pad is in place. 
 

 Underground utility site work has progressed 
substantially to roughly 80% complete. 

 

 Pier steel fabrication is 95% complete. 
 

 Drilling of piers is ongoing and currently 60% 
complete. 

 

 Grade beam forms are approximately 10% 
fabricated and 5% of grades beams have 
been poured. 

 

 69 submittals have been received. 60 have 
been reviewed and returned. 9 remain in 
review. 

 

 As of 1/31/16, the construction contract is 
9% complete. 

 

 

 

206



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 3 

 
 

PINK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Design Development 

 Construction Start: June 2016 

 Construction Completion: August 2016 

 
 
 
 
 

 OVERVIEW 

Pink Elementary School Repairs 
  

 Currently the Pink Elementary School 
project is in design.  

 

 Planned work includes repairs of cracks in 
exterior and interior walls, adjusting ceilings, 
adjusting doors that need alignment, and re-
leveling some floor area. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

207



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 4 

 
 

SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Support Services facility project 
will provide space to expand and 
relocate Purchasing & Materials 
Management, Food Service Support, 
Maintenance & Operations, and 
Graphic Arts 

 
 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Schematic Design 

 Construction Start: 4
th
 Quarter 2016 

 Construction Completion: 3
rd

 Quarter 2017 

 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
OVERVIEW 

 

 PBK Architects have begun the Program 
Development phase. 

 

 Detailed program development meetings 
are occurring to confirm specific 
requirements for each department. 

 

 The site for Support Services Facility is 
located on Lane Drive, north of 
Wessendorff Middle School. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Support 
Services Site 

Wessendorff Middle School 

208



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 5 

 
 

ELEMENTARY 25 

 
 

 
 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Design Development 

 Construction Start: 2
nd

 Quarter 2016 

 Construction Completion: 3
rd

 Quarter 2017 

 

 

OVERVIEW 

 The site is located in the Firethorne 
Subdivision in the north section of the 
District. 

 

 The Design Committee has been 
established. 

 

 The first design meeting was held to review 
the site plan and building interiors. 

 

 A preliminary site plan has been developed 
for review. 

 

 The geotechnical study is underway. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

209



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 6 

 
 

PRACTICE POOLS 
George Ranch High School 

Foster High School 

Fulshear High School 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Program Development 

 Construction Start: Under Review 

 Construction Completion: Under Review 

 OVERVIEW 

 PBK Architects are preparing to begin the 
Program Development phase. 

 

 Detailed program development meetings will 
be scheduled to confirm specific requirements 
for the Practice Pools at each campus.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

BASEBALL SCOREBOARD 

Foster High School 

 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Fabrication 

 Construction Start: February 2016 

 Construction Completion: March 2016 

 

 
 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW 

 Nevco, Inc. is under contract to furnish and 
install the new Baseball Scoreboard. 

 

 The Foster High School Scoreboard will 
match the features of the other high schools 
in the District. 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

210



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 7 

 
 

BASEBALL COMPLEX 

Terry High School 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Program Development 

 Construction Start: 3
rd

 Quarter 2016 

 Construction Completion: 2
nd

 Quarter 2017 

 OVERVIEW  

 PBK Architects are preparing to begin the 
Program Development phase. 

 

 Detailed program development meetings will 
be scheduled to confirm specific 
requirements for the Baseball Complex at 
Terry High School.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

BAND HALL ADDITIONS 

Lamar Consolidated High School 

Terry High School 

 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Program Development 

 Construction Start: 4
th
 Quarter 2016 

 Construction Completion: 3
rd

 Quarter 2017 

 

 OVERVIEW 

 VLK Architects are preparing to begin the 
Program Development phase. 

 

 Detailed program development meetings 
will be scheduled to confirm specific 
requirements for the Band Hall Additions at 
Lamar Consolidated and Terry High 
Schools.  

 
 
 

 

Existing Baseball 
Complex 

211



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 8 

 
 

SATELLITE AG BARN #3 
 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Program Development 

 Construction Start: Pending Site Selection 

 Construction Completion: TBD 

 

 OVERVIEW 

 VLK Architects have begun the Program 
Development phase. 

 

 Detailed program development meetings 
have been occurring to confirm specific 
requirements for the Satellite Ag Barn #3.  

 

 Satellite Ag Barn #2 and #3 are being 
programmed together. 

  

 A site for the Satellite Ag Barn #3 has not 
been selected. Full design will depend on 
site selection. 

 

 
 

FUTURE PROJECTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 OVERVIEW 

 The future projects in the 2014 Bond 
Program will be reported on as they begin: 

 
 Bond Sale 1 

 
a. Elementary #26 

b. Foster HS Water Plant 

c. HVAC Web-Based Controls 

 

 Bond Sale 2 

 
a. Elementary #27 

b. Elementary #28 

c. Fulshear 6th Grade School 

d. Fulshear Shell Space Build-Out 

 

 

212



INFORMATION ITEM: TRANSPORTATION UPDATE 

 

PERSONNEL CHANGES: 

During the month of January, the following changes were made: 
  
 Trainees hired:    5 
 Full time drivers hired:   8 
 Bus aides hired:    3 
 Drivers quit or terminated    3 
 
As of the date of this report, we have: 
 
 Total Drivers in Training   6 
 Waiting on skills test   3 
 Ready to take a route   3 
 
Our employee referral and incentive program for recruiting and retaining new drivers 
has resulted in the following payouts this month. 
 

Initial Payout                   6 Month Payout 
New Drivers:  9                 New Drivers: 0 
Referred:    6                 Referred: 0 

 
ACCIDENTS: 
There were three (3) accidents in December.   
This is down from four (4) accidents in January. 
 
FIELD TRIPS: 
 Site   Number of Trips  Miles 

 Rosenberg   279   16,704 

 Fulshear     65     5,711 

 

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: 

The Maintenance Department responded to a total of eight breakdowns where the bus 
needed attention or replacement on the road.  
 
The department pumped 25,126 gallons of diesel and 4,710 gallons of gasoline for the 
month. 
 

ROUTING AND SCHEDULING: 

We have the following routes in operation at the present time. A full ABDE route is one 
route that covers A-morning elementary, B-morning secondary, D-afternoon elementary 
and E-secondary. 
 

    11.B.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

213



 Full ABDE Routes   138 
 Partial Routes     21 
 Special Needs Routes   34 
 Special Needs Mid-days   25 
 Pre-K Mid-days    12 
 Doubled Runs      3 
 

We are continuing to eliminate double runs and we are combining double runs with 
existing partial runs as soon as new drivers come aboard.  We started the school year 
with 24 double runs and now we only have three. 
 
TRAINING AND OTHER EVENTS: 
A safety meeting was held on January 20th for the Rosenberg staff at the LCHS 
auditorium. 
 
This meeting focused on speeds in school and loading zones, pre-trip inspections, 
attendance, dress code, sick leave vs. discretionary leave, route numbers being visible 
and the process of eliminating double runs. 
     

STUDENT DISCIPLINE: 
During the month of November, 312 discipline referrals were submitted. In December, 
215 discipline referrals were submitted.  In January, the number dropped to 208. We will 
continue to compare the data in the coming months.    
 
 
Resource Persons:   Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
    Mike Jones, Director of Transportation 
 

214



 

 
INFORMATION ITEM:  POSSIBLE PROJECTS FROM AVAILABLE 

2011 BOND FUNDS 
 

The following is a list of projects that could be funded through the 2011 available bond 
funds.  These project budgets have been estimated for budget purposes. 
  
ATHLETICS 
 Traylor Stadium 

 Site utility paving under the stands  

 New fencing around the perimeter 

 Replace old Auxiliary Field House with new Auxiliary Field House 

 $2,200,000 
 
MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS 

Energy Projects 

 These projects will reduce energy consumption.  The chillers on this list are 
past the life cycle that is generated by industry standards. 

 Chiller replacements for: 
 Wessendorff Middle 
 Travis Elementary 
 Alternative Learning Center 
 Seguin Early Childhood Center 
 Frost Elementary 
 Huggins Elementary 

 Retrofit parking lot lights District-wide 

 HVAC and lighting controls updates 

 $2,065,000 
 
HUGGINS RENOVATIONS AND ADDITIONS 

 Improvements to the parking and parent pickup/drop-off 
 $560,000 
 April 2016 -  Approve Design 
 May 2016 -  Receive Bids 
 October 2016 -  Complete  

 

   11.B.#7. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

215



 
 

 4 classroom additions $3,425,000 

 Schedule: If approved, to proceed in March 2016  
 April 2016 - Approve Design 
 July 2016 - Receive Bids 
 March 2017 - Complete  

 
BEASLEY RENOVATIONS AND ADDITIONS 

 12 additional classrooms $6,160,000    
 
ADDITIONAL FENCE  

 For budget purposes a 6ft galvanized fence installed runs $20/ft. 

 This number will increase if powder coated or ornamental fencing is required 
 
ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEM 

 Key card access system, each unit per door is $5,000 
 Example – If we install (3) units at the elementary/middle schools and  

(5) units at the junior high/high schools. The estimated cost would be 
$685,000. 

 
SECURITY WINDOWS FOR EXTERIOR DOORS  

 The Maintenance Department is installing windows in all exterior doors of 
portable classrooms that do not currently have them. 

 At Huggins Elementary the doors leading to the cafeteria from the hall now 
have windows installed.   

 At the Alternative Learning Center the portables have new windows installed in 
the exterior doors. 

216



 Maintenance is now looking at installing peep holes in exterior doors that are 
accessible by teachers and students. The schools listed below are schools 
that have doors that could use a peep hole installed.   

 Austin   16 
 Huggins   14 
 Navarro   18 
 Beasley   11 
 Bowie     5 
 Jackson     9 
 Meyer   16 
 Taylor Ray   12 
 Pink       6 
 Williams     6 
 Seguin     3 

 
 Total            122 

 
This is a project to be done by the M&O Preventative Maintenance team as they rotate to 
each campus.   
 
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS STUDY FOR MUSTANG AVENUE 
Traffic Engineers Inc. performed a traffic study on Mustang Avenue and from this study 
presented 4 Options: 
 

Option #1  

 New parking lot on the corner of Mustang Avenue and Horace Mann 

 Restripe head parking to parallel parking along Mustang Avenue 

 Add additional sidewalk from Mustang Avenue to Avenue H/90A 

 New sidewalk along Mustang Avenue from the tennis courts to Horace Mann 
 Cost estimated total:  $1,586,027.49 
 Sidewalks only, the estimated cost total:  $244,629.36 

 

217



Option #2  

 This option takes Option #1 and adds an additional parking lot to the corner of 
Mustang Avenue and Herndon Drive. 

 With this additional parking lot the football practice field would need to be 
relocated to the north of the proposed parking lot. 
 Cost estimated total:     $2,469,197.72 

 

 

 
 
 Option #3 

 This option takes Option #2 plus the modification of the existing parking lot off 
of Mustang Avenue between Lamar Consolidated High and Lamar Junior High 
to provide on-site stacking for the junior high parents (double stacking).  Some 
parking could remain for visitors. 
 Cost estimated total:     $2,370,810.77 

 

218



 

 

Option #4  

 

 This option will switch the existing circulation patterns for buses and parent 
vehicles.   

 Construct a 24 foot wide bus loading/unloading area for the high school and 
junior high along the south side of Mustang Avenue. 

 Separate from the Mustang Avenue main lanes by a raised median. 

 Construct a ten foot sidewalk and canopy adjacent to the bus 
loading/unloading area. 

 Close the staff parking lot between the high school and junior high.  

 Construct a junior high visitor’s parking lot on north side of Mustang Avenue 
(east of the band practice lot). 

 Circulate junior high parent vehicles in the back of the school.   
 Cost estimated total:    $3,975,823.38 

 

219



 

 

The City of Rosenberg would need to be involved with any construction that would affect 
Mustang Avenue.  

 

Resource Person:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations  

220



 
 

 
 

INFORMATION ITEM: CONTRACT WITH ENERGY FOR SCHOOLS 
 
 
At the November 19, 2015 Regular Meeting, the Board of Trustees authorized the 
Superintendent to execute an electrical provider contract beginning June 1, 2018.  
 
Energy for Schools and Direct Energy were solicited and provided pricing for electricity 
for the term of June 1, 2018 to May 31, 2020.  Administration provided detailed 
information about our current usage as well as information regarding future buildings 
and sites.     
 
Energy for Schools provided the most aggressive pricing, allowing the District to lock in 
a fixed rate of $0.04242 per kilowatt (kWh) for the specific term. Based on the current 
rate of $0.05502 per kWh and an estimated annual usage of 65,310,260 kWh, savings 
for the two-year period is estimated at $1,645,819.  In addition, with the General Land 
Office (GLO), the District will be exempt from the Gross Receipts Tax and Public Utility 
Assessment Fee pass-through costs.  These exemptions should produce savings of 
$120,000 over the term, bringing the total estimated savings to $1,765,819. 
 
 
 
 
 
Resource Persons: Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent 

Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Michele Leach, RTSBA, Purchasing & Materials Manager 
    
 
 

  11.B.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

221



 

 
INFORMATION ITEM:  NAMING NEW SCHOOLS 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Board Policy CW (LOCAL) states, “The responsibility for naming a facility rests with the 
Board.”   
 
In December, the Board of Trustees was given a tentative timeline for consideration and 
approval of names for the new Lamar CISD schools approved in the November 2014 
Bond Election.   
 
The timeline is attached. 
 
Students, staff, parents and community members have all submitted nominations for the 
Board to review. A binder with all nominations will be provided as an external resource 
for the Board. The Administration includes all nominations in the binder and does not 
remove nominations or verify if the nominations are aligned with Board Policy CW 
(LOCAL).    
 
  
 
 
 
 
Resource Person: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 

 11.B.#9. - PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

FEBRUARY 18, 2016 

222



Timeline for Naming New Schools 
 

November 2014 Bond Referendum 
Elementary #24, Elementary #25, Elementary #26, Elementary #27, Elementary #28 

and Middle School #5 
 
 
 
 

January 4, 2016  Nomination form sent to public and media 
 
February 5, 2016  Deadline for submitting nominations 
 
February 18, 2016 Booklet with all nominations and back-up information 

distributed to the Board for review  
 
March 22, 2016 Public Hearing on nominations  
 
April 21, 2016  Board Approval   
 

223


	February 18 2016 Board Agenda Book WITH Closed Session.pdf
	Cover
	Agenda
	Call to order and establishment of a quorum
	Opening of meeting
	Student Reports
	Foster High School Robotics

	Recognitions/awards
	Introductions
	Audience to patrons
	Approval of minutes
	January 19, 2016 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting January 19 2016.docx

	January 21, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting January 21 2016.docx


	Board members reports
	Meetings and events

	Superintendent reports
	Meetings and events
	Information for immediate attention

	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Consider approval of additional Local State Compensatory Education criteria
	State Compensatory Education.docx


	Goal: Planning
	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	February 16 Budget Amendments.doc

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	Schedule of Disbursements January 2016.docx
	MUNIS 953 January 2016 Board Copy.xlsx
	Local Investment Report.pdf

	Consider approval of collateral security agreement
	Collateral Security Agreement.doc
	Collateral Security Agreement backup.pdf

	Consider approval of updates to accumulated leave buyback plans and related revisions to Board Policy
	401(a) 403(b) and Policy DEC (Local) Revision FINAL 02102015- Cover Item.doc
	401(a) Adoption Agreement 02092016.pdf
	401(a) Basic Plan Document 02092016.pdf
	401(a) Basic Trust Document 02092016.pdf
	Lamar CISD 403(b) Adoption Agreement rev (002) 02092016.pdf
	Lamar CISD accumulated leave policy proposed revision FINAL 02092016.docx

	Consider approval of agreement to establish a safekeeping account with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
	Safekeeping Account with Wells Fargo Cover Item 02092016.doc
	Safekeeping Agency Agreement 02092016.pdf

	Consider approval of Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) with HON Company LLC
	HON BPA Agreement - Cover Item.doc
	2016 Lamar CISD BPA Document (003).pdf

	Consider approval of Board Policy - Second Reading
	APPROVAL OF BOARD POLICIES.doc
	Localized Policy Manual Update 102
	Localized Policy Manual Update 103

	Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:
	Diagnosticians' Week
	Diagnosticians' Week Recommendation.doc
	Diagnosticians' Week Resolution.pdf

	Texas Public Schools Week
	Texas Public Schools Week Recommendation.docx
	Texas Public Schools Week Resolution.docx


	Consider approval of Lamar CISD Zoning Committee recommendations for Elementary #24
	Elementary #24 Zoning Committee Considerations.docx
	ABC Recommendation 1-11-16.pdf

	Consider approval of deductive change order #1 and final payment for Arredondo Elementary
	Deductive Change Order and Final Payment for Arredondo.doc
	Change Order Arredondo.pdf
	Pay App for Arredondo.pdf

	Consider approval of deductive change order #1 and project closeout for the Traylor Stadium renovations
	Deductive Change Order and Final Payment for Traylor Stadium.doc
	Change Order Traylor Stadium Renovations.pdf
	Payment App for Traylor Stadium.pdf

	Consider approval of deductive change order #1 and final payment for the 2015 summer miscellaneous projects
	Deductive Change Order and Final Payment for Summer miscellaneous projects.doc
	Change Order MISC Renovations 2015.pdf
	Pay App MISC Renovations 2015.pdf

	Consider approval of final payment for the security vestibules:
	Bowie Elementary School
	Security Vestibule for Bowie Elementary School.doc
	Bowie Pay App.pdf

	Briscoe Junior High School
	Security Vestibule for Briscoe Junior High School.doc
	Final Pay App Briscoe R1.pdf

	Foster High School
	Security Vestibule for Foster High School.doc
	Foster Pay App .pdf

	George Junior High School
	Security Vestibule for George Junior High School.doc
	Final Pay App George Junior R1.pdf

	Lamar Consolidated High School
	Security Vestibule for Lamar Consolidated High.doc
	Final Pay App Lamar CHS R1.pdf


	Consider approval of design development for Pink Elementary School repairs
	Design Development for Pink Repairs.docx

	Consider approval of hydrostatic plumbing test for Pink Elementary School
	Hydrostatic Test for Pink.docx
	2016-02-18 Proposal Phils Plumbing Hydrostatic Plumbing Test Pink ES.pdf

	Consider approval of design development for the new Elementary #25
	Design Development for Elementary 25.docx

	Consider approval of HVAC test and balance for the new Elementary #24
	HVAC Test and Balance for Elementary 24.docx
	2016-02-18 Proposal EAB HVAC Test and Balance Elem 24.pdf

	Consider approval of Superintendent Priorities for 2016-2017
	Superintendent Priorities.doc

	Discussion of Board Operating Procedures
	Board Operating Procedures.docx
	Board Operating Procedures updated April 2013 - FINAL.pdf


	Goal:  Technology
	Consider approval of additional security cameras and components
	Security Cameras Phase II.docx
	Campus Camera Requests 2016 Phase II.pdf
	Lamar Camera Request 2016 Cafeterias HS and JH.pdf
	Lamar Camera Request 2016 Cafeterias Elementary and Middle Schools.pdf



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Quarterly Academic Update
	Quarterly Academic Update.doc

	2015 Gaston Caperton Opportunity Honor Roll
	Gaston Caperton Opportunity Honor Roll.doc

	Freezing of new Intra-District/Inter-District transfer requests to Bowie, Hubenak, McNeill, Ray, Thomas, Travis, and Williams elementary schools
	2016-2017 Campus Freeze.docx


	Goal: Planning
	Demographic Update
	Demographic Update.docx

	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 1312016.doc
	TAX COLLECTIONS JANUARY 2016.pdf

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction Projects.docx

	Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update
	Region 4 Monthly January 2016.docx

	Bond Update
	2011
	Monthly Report-Feb 2016.docx
	Schedule FOR MONTHLY REPORT_2-15 (00000002).pdf
	district-map-FOR MONTHLY REPORT.pdf

	2014
	2016-01-31 January 2016 LCISD Monthly Report VRGJV.docx


	Transportation Update
	Transportation Update.docx

	Possible projects from available 2011 bond funds
	Possible Projects from available 2011 funds.docx

	Contract with Energy for Schools
	Energy for Schools 02082016.doc

	Naming New Schools
	Naming 2014 Bond Schools.docx
	Naming 2014 Bond Schools Timeline.docx



	CLOSED SESSION
	Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:  (Time___________________)
	Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
	Personnel Employment.pdf
	Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional personnel
	Employment of professional personnel (Information)
	February 18 Employed Only.docx

	Employee resignations and retirements (Information)
	February 18 Resigned Only.docx


	Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property
	Land

	Section 551.071 - To meet with the District's attorney to discuss matters in which the duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including the grievance/complaint hearing.
	Any item listed on the agenda
	Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance litigation



	39 final.pdf
	39 final.pdf
	Cover
	Agenda
	Call to order and establishment of a quorum
	Opening of meeting
	Student Reports
	Foster High School Robotics

	Recognitions/awards
	Introductions
	Audience to patrons
	Approval of minutes
	January 19, 2016 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting January 19 2016.docx

	January 21, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting January 21 2016.docx


	Board members reports
	Meetings and events

	Superintendent reports
	Meetings and events
	Information for immediate attention

	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Consider approval of additional Local State Compensatory Education criteria
	State Compensatory Education.docx


	Goal: Planning
	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	February 16 Budget Amendments.doc

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	Schedule of Disbursements January 2016.docx
	MUNIS 953 January 2016 Board Copy.xlsx
	Local Investment Report.pdf

	Consider approval of collateral security agreement
	Collateral Security Agreement.doc
	Collateral Security Agreement backup.pdf

	Consider approval of updates to accumulated leave buyback plans and related revisions to Board Policy
	401(a) 403(b) and Policy DEC (Local) Revision FINAL 02102015- Cover Item.doc
	401(a) Adoption Agreement 02092016.pdf
	401(a) Basic Plan Document 02092016.pdf
	401(a) Basic Trust Document 02092016.pdf
	Lamar CISD 403(b) Adoption Agreement rev (002) 02092016.pdf
	Lamar CISD accumulated leave policy proposed revision FINAL 02092016.docx

	Consider approval of agreement to establish a safekeeping account with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
	Safekeeping Account with Wells Fargo Cover Item 02092016.doc
	Safekeeping Agency Agreement 02092016.pdf

	Consider approval of Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) with HON Company LLC
	HON BPA Agreement - Cover Item.doc
	2016 Lamar CISD BPA Document (003).pdf

	Consider approval of Board Policy - Second Reading
	APPROVAL OF BOARD POLICIES.doc
	Localized Policy Manual Update 102
	Localized Policy Manual Update 103

	Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:
	Diagnosticians' Week
	Diagnosticians' Week Recommendation.doc
	Diagnosticians' Week Resolution.pdf

	Texas Public Schools Week
	Texas Public Schools Week Recommendation.docx
	Texas Public Schools Week Resolution.docx


	Consider approval of Lamar CISD Zoning Committee recommendations for Elementary #24
	Elementary #24 Zoning Committee Considerations.docx
	ABC Recommendation 1-11-16.pdf

	Consider approval of deductive change order #1 and final payment for Arredondo Elementary
	Deductive Change Order and Final Payment for Arredondo.doc
	Change Order Arredondo.pdf
	Pay App for Arredondo.pdf

	Consider approval of deductive change order #1 and project closeout for the Traylor Stadium renovations
	Deductive Change Order and Final Payment for Traylor Stadium.doc
	Change Order Traylor Stadium Renovations.pdf
	Payment App for Traylor Stadium.pdf

	Consider approval of deductive change order #1 and final payment for the 2015 summer miscellaneous projects
	Deductive Change Order and Final Payment for Summer miscellaneous projects.doc
	Change Order MISC Renovations 2015.pdf
	Pay App MISC Renovations 2015.pdf

	Consider approval of final payment for the security vestibules:
	Bowie Elementary School
	Security Vestibule for Bowie Elementary School.doc
	Bowie Pay App.pdf

	Briscoe Junior High School
	Security Vestibule for Briscoe Junior High School.doc
	Final Pay App Briscoe R1.pdf

	Foster High School
	Security Vestibule for Foster High School.doc
	Foster Pay App .pdf

	George Junior High School
	Security Vestibule for George Junior High School.doc
	Final Pay App George Junior R1.pdf

	Lamar Consolidated High School
	Security Vestibule for Lamar Consolidated High.doc
	Final Pay App Lamar CHS R1.pdf


	Consider approval of design development for Pink Elementary School repairs
	Design Development for Pink Repairs.docx

	Consider approval of hydrostatic plumbing test for Pink Elementary School
	Hydrostatic Test for Pink.docx
	2016-02-18 Proposal Phils Plumbing Hydrostatic Plumbing Test Pink ES.pdf

	Consider approval of design development for the new Elementary #25
	Design Development for Elementary 25.docx

	Consider approval of HVAC test and balance for the new Elementary #24
	HVAC Test and Balance for Elementary 24.docx
	2016-02-18 Proposal EAB HVAC Test and Balance Elem 24.pdf

	Consider approval of Superintendent Priorities for 2016-2017
	Superintendent Priorities.doc

	Discussion of Board Operating Procedures
	Board Operating Procedures.docx
	Board Operating Procedures updated April 2013 - FINAL.pdf


	Goal:  Technology
	Consider approval of additional security cameras and components
	Security Cameras Phase II.docx
	Campus Camera Requests 2016 Phase II.pdf
	Lamar Camera Request 2016 Cafeterias HS and JH.pdf
	Lamar Camera Request 2016 Cafeterias Elementary and Middle Schools.pdf



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Quarterly Academic Update
	Quarterly Academic Update.doc

	2015 Gaston Caperton Opportunity Honor Roll
	Gaston Caperton Opportunity Honor Roll.doc

	Freezing of new Intra-District/Inter-District transfer requests to Bowie, Hubenak, McNeill, Ray, Thomas, Travis, and Williams elementary schools
	2016-2017 Campus Freeze.docx


	Goal: Planning
	Demographic Update
	Demographic Update.docx

	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 1312016.doc
	TAX COLLECTIONS JANUARY 2016.pdf

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction Projects.docx

	Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update
	Region 4 Monthly January 2016.docx

	Bond Update
	2011
	Monthly Report-Feb 2016.docx
	Schedule FOR MONTHLY REPORT_2-15 (00000002).pdf
	district-map-FOR MONTHLY REPORT.pdf

	2014
	2016-01-31 January 2016 LCISD Monthly Report VRGJV.docx


	Transportation Update
	Transportation Update.docx

	Possible projects from available 2011 bond funds
	Possible Projects from available 2011 funds.docx

	Contract with Energy for Schools
	Energy for Schools 02082016.doc

	Naming New Schools
	Naming 2014 Bond Schools.docx
	Naming 2014 Bond Schools Timeline.docx



	CLOSED SESSION
	Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:  (Time___________________)
	Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
	Personnel Employment.pdf
	Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional personnel
	Employment of professional personnel (Information)
	February 18 Employed Only.docx

	Employee resignations and retirements (Information)
	February 18 Resigned Only.docx


	Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property
	Land

	Section 551.071 - To meet with the District's attorney to discuss matters in which the duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including the grievance/complaint hearing.
	Any item listed on the agenda
	Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance litigation









